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Five Year Summary

FRS 102 Old UK GAAP

For the year ended 31 March
2016

£m
2015

£m
2014

£m
2013

£m
2012

£m

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Turnover 143.2 141.1 131.5 122.3 110.0
Cost of sales (3.4) (5.5) (8.9) (7.6) (5.6)
Operating costs (96.7) (98.2) (89.0) (80.0) (80.1)
Operating surplus 43.1 37.4 33.6 34.7 24.3
Net interest charge (24.8) (29.0) (23.5) (22.7) (19.6)
Surplus on sale of assets 2.0 2.6 1.4 2.1 1.4
Fair	value	movement	on	financial	instruments 0.0 0.3 – – –
Fair value movement on investment properties 1.0 0.9 – – –
Share of surplus in joint ventures 0.3 0.3 – – –
Tax (charge)/credit on ordinary activities 0.8 (0.1) (0.1) 0.3 6.7
Surplus for the year 22.4 12.4 11.4 14.4 12.8

Statement of Financial Position
Housing properties at cost less depreciation 1,137.4 1,107.0 1,126.6 1,072.3 1,006.6
Less: Social housing and other grants – – (440.8) (427.0) (408.4)

1,137.4 1,107.0 685.8 645.3 598.2
Other	fixed	assets 50.6 47.1 25.8 27.4 28.3
Investments 2.3 2.4 1.9 1.8 2.9
Net current assets 21.6 49.8 60.6 55.6 104.3

1,211.9 1,206.4 774.1 730.1 733.7
Loans due after one year 1,025.8 1,043.0 633.1 597.4 616.1
Other long term liabilities 23.7 32.7 23.0 24.3 7.9
Reserves 162.4 130.7 118.0 108.4 109.7

1,211.9 1,206.4 774.1 730.1 733.7

Statistics
Operating margin 30% 27% 26% 28% 22%
Gearing 85% 86% 82% 82% 84%
Interest cover 174% 129% 142% 153% 124%
Total housing properties in management 21,003 20,903 20,452 19,861 19,457

The	2016	and	2015	performance	highlights	are	shown	under	the	new	financial	reporting	regime	FRS	102	The	
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (“FRS 102”). The results for 2012-2014 
are shown under old United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (“UK GAAP”). See note 28 for details 
on	the	changes	made	and	the	effects	that	these	have	had.

In	2015/16	the	Group	has	made	a	£1.4m	deficit	payment	into	the	Radian	Group	Pension	Scheme	to	improve	
funding (2014/15: £2.0m, 2013/14: £4.0m, 2012/13: £5.0m and 2011/12: £5.0m). These payments reduce our 
pension	obligations	and	do	not	affect	operating	costs.	In	2014/15	there	were	transfers	of	pension	assets	and	
obligations	between	subsidiary	members	of	the	Radian	Group	Pension	Scheme	which	affect	their	operating	 
costs but have no impact at Group level. The impact on Company operating costs is £nil (2015: £0.9m).

Performance Highlights
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I	have	enjoyed	the	privilege	of	working	with	Radian	Group	for	a	full	financial	year,	having	being	appointed	as	Chair	
of Radian Group Limited (“Radian”) in September 2014. I am also a member of the Group Combined Board and 
New Business Committee.

I was motivated to become involved in Radian because the visions, values and purpose of the Group resonated 
with me and I continue to enjoy my role as Chair of the Group. My work with Radian is closely related to other 
roles I hold and held previously. I continue to serve as a non-executive director within the NHS, having previously 
chaired the Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust, the main provider of mental health, learning and community 
services across Hampshire. In this, and also in my role as a magistrate and previous role as Chair of the 
Governors of an Academy Trust school, I am passionate about focusing on individuals, their needs and helping 
people to live independently. For me, Radian does just that, playing a vital role in our local communities as a long 
standing	provider	of	social	and	affordable	housing.	

Our Performance
The	financial	year	2015/16	has	been	a	successful	one	for	Radian	and	I	feel	that	we	have	shown	our	ability	to	face	
challenges and adapt in changing environments. We have continued to increase our operating margin for housing 
annually, increasing our capacity to fund new borrowings to build new homes. Changes in government legislation, 
such as the rent reduction and new Voluntary Right to Buy (“VRTB”) legislation, make these strategic goals more 
challenging.

In	spite	of	these	challenges,	we	continue	to	raise	significant	funds	through	bond	finance	which	we	structure	in	
a	way	to	maximise	Value	for	Money	for	the	Group	and	obtain	finance	at	the	right	time,	in	line	with	the	Group’s	
requirements for development.

We have been working hard with our colleagues on the Board and within the Group to review our board and 
committee structure. We are designing this to best enable Radian to engage with our stakeholders and comply 
fully with the regulatory framework, all the while focused on meeting our operational targets and strategic goals.

Our Achievements
We	continue	to	implement	a	new	operational	structure	and	achieve	sector	leading	staff	engagement	and	customer	
satisfaction. We are meeting stretch performance targets and reducing the cost of services year on year. These 
measures have helped us provide over 2,000 new homes since 2010 and launch products such as Employment 
Support and Training, Radian Homes, SMART. homes, the HelptoBuy South agency and Radian Build. We have 
won a whole site regeneration tender for Quebec Park Bordon, where we are constructing 100 new homes.  
We have also achieved the Investors in People ‘gold’ award and multiple other national and regional awards  
for excellence in products and services.

Future Developments
We have decided, in light of increasingly challenging conditions in the social care market and in the interests of all 
concerned, to withdraw from providing care and support services. We have not taken this decision lightly, and we 
are	confident	that	the	arrangements	we	are	making	will	enable	the	people	we	support	to	continue	to	live	their	lives	
‘their	way’	and	flourish.	We	are	very	grateful	to	those	who	have	contributed	to	making	Radian	Support	such	a	
positive force in so many people’s lives.

Introduction from the Chair of the  
Group Combined Board
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Vision 2025
We signed up to the National Housing Federation’s 20 year vision in July 2014, envisaging housing providers in  
the future as vigorous suppliers of homes meeting a broad spectrum of housing needs and choices. Following 
this,	we	have	redefined	our	purpose	as	‘empowering	people	with	the	homes	and	services	they	need	to	flourish	
and build great communities’. We have a bold new vision for 2025 which will inspire our longer term plans.  
We are determined to have a place in the world of 2025 and recognise that to achieve this we will need to continue 
to be relevant to its needs. Strategies and plans will be the means by which we navigate to this new world and we 
will continue to invite feedback and review our vision, adapting it when the world presents new opportunities.

Carol Bode 
Chair

Introduction from the Chair of the  
Group Combined Board continued
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Our Principal Entities

Portal Housing 
Association 

Limited  
(3A)

Windsor 
& District 
Housing 

Association 
Limited  

(2A)

Drum Housing 
Association 

Limited  
(3A)

The Swaythling 
Housing 

Society Limited 
(2A)

Radian Support 
Limited  

(3B)

Radian  
Capital Plc  

(4C)

Oriel  
Housing 
Limited  

(2A)

Swaythling 
Assured  

Homes Plc  
(4F)

Affinity 
Reading 

(Holdings) 
Limited – 50% 

Holding  
(5D)

Affinity  
Housing 

Services – 50% 
Holding  

(6G)

Affinity 
Reading 
Limited  

(5E)

Radian Group Limited  
(1A)

Status 
1. Company Limited by Guarantee
2. Registered Society (England)
3.   Charitable Registered Society (England)
4.  Public Limited Company (England)
5.  Limited Company (England)
6.  Partnership

Activity 
A. Registered Provider
B.   Care and support services
C.  Funding vehicle
D.  Holding company
E.   Operator of PFI contract to refurbish, manage and maintain 

housing stock
F.  Dormant entity
G.   Housing services provider
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Lindsay Todd – Chief Executive
Lindsay is a chartered surveyor who has held housing and development roles in housing 
associations in the North and the Midlands, as well as with private rented housing company 
Quality Street Ltd. 

In 2000 he was appointed as Chief Executive of Oriel Group, one of Radian’s founding 
partners,	and	became	Radian’s	first	Chief	Executive	when	it	was	formed	in	December	2006.

He is a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors housing supply group and 
was recently elected to serve on the South East and Thames Valley regional council of the 
Confederation of British Industry.

Andrew Newberry – Director of Finance
Andrew	Newberry	qualified	as	a	chartered	accountant	in	1979,	whilst	working	for	an	
international practice in England. After two years’ further experience with them in Africa,  
he returned to England and moved into commerce. This gave him experience at a senior level 
in a range of activities including construction, property development, property maintenance 
manufacturing and leasing. 

Andrew joined The Swaythling Housing Society Limited, as Director of Finance in 1996, 
taking	responsibility	for	finance,	IT	and	company	secretary	matters	and	became	Director	of	
Finance of Radian Group at its inception. He is a member of the National Housing Federation 
(“NHF”) Financial Policy Advisory Group, and the Housing Statement of Recommended 
Practice (“SORP”) working party. 

Andrea Smith – Director of Development and New Business
Andrea joined The Swaythling Housing Society Limited, one of Radian’s founding 
associations, in July 1998, and has therefore been with Radian since its inception.  
A chartered architect, Andrea’s early career was spent in private practice.

Passionate about property and design and proud of Radian’s track record of developing 
award winning schemes, Andrea is a member of the NHF South East Standing Board,  
a Director of Dorset LEP and chair of the NHF Delivering Great Homes Group.  

Ralph Facey – Director of Housing and Customer Services
Ralph joined Radian in January 2005 and has over 25 years’ housing management 
experience	gained	in	a	range	of	different	organisations.	In	Birmingham,	Ralph	co-ordinated	
preparations for the transfer of the City Castle Vale estate to a Housing Action Trust and 
oversaw the formal transfer. After three years spent as Housing Services Manager at 
Southampton	City	Council,	Ralph	became	Chief	Housing	Officer	at	Gosport	and	led	 
the	service	through	a	period	of	successful	and	significant	change.

In January 2005 Ralph took over responsibility for The Swaythling Housing Society Limited’s 
preparations for the July 2005 Audit Commission inspection, which resulted in a good service 
and excellent prospects for improvement judgement. Ralph was appointed as Group Director 
of Housing and Customer Services in December 2009 and is also a member of the Chartered 
Institute of Housing.

Our Executive Team
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Peter Evans – Director of Technical Services
Peter has been working in construction for over 30 years gaining experience in a variety 
of	roles	across	different	sectors	including	self	employment,	contracting,	private	sector	
consultancy, charitable organisations and the housing sector.

After	leaving	the	production	side	of	the	construction	industry	in	1997	he	gained	qualification	
as a surveyor and subsequently joined the National Trust as an historic building surveyor 
working in Oxfordshire. In the same year he won two Chartered Institute of Builders Awards  
in Contractual and Technology studies. As Director of Technical Services he is responsible  
for asset management, maintenance, procurement, sustainability and facilities management.

Gina Small – Director of Radian Support
Gina has been working in health and social care for over 30 years, moving from her 
native Glasgow in 1986. She worked across a range of services in both operational and 
commissioning roles before joining Radian in November 2011. 

Prior to Radian, Gina was responsible for developing education and support services for 
people with learning disabilities and autism, as well as setting up a charitable foundation for 
a national charity. She has always had a passion for developing projects and services which 
recognise the rights and needs of people with disabilities, seeking to make real and positive 
differences	in	their	lives.	

Isabelle Simon-Evans – Director of Corporate Services
Isabelle joined Radian in February 2010 following a career across the private, public and 
not-for-profit	sectors	and	has	experience	of	strategic	restructuring	and	outsourcing	as	well	as	
integrating cultures after mergers. Isabelle was formerly Director of People, Procurement and 
Organisational Development with The Children’s Society and a board member and chair of 
the remuneration committee for a housing association specialising in services for people  
with learning disabilities and mental health issues. 

Starting her career in sales and marketing, Isabelle developed operational experience in 
running services for vulnerable adults, registering and inspecting residential care. She is a 
Fellow of the Institute of Personnel and Development and has had experience as a magistrate 
in the youth and adult courts.

Our Executive Team
continued
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Board Report
The	Board	presents	its	annual	report	and	the	audited	financial	statements	for	the	year	ended	31	March	2016.

Principal Activities
Radian	Group	Limited	(the	“Group”)	is	a	not-for-profit	organisation	administered	by	a	non-executive	board	of	
management.	It	is	a	Company	Limited	by	Guarantee	and	is	a	Registered	Provider.	It	has	five	principal	subsidiaries,	
of which four are Registered Providers and the other has provided care and support services mainly for people 
with	learning	difficulties.	An	announcement	was	made	on	19	April	2016	to	withdraw	from	providing	these	services.	
It also has a subsidiary held for the purpose of issuing bonds and lending the proceeds to other members of the 
Group. Another subsidiary, also a Registered Provider, trades in construction and property development. Radian 
is subject to regulation by the Homes and Communities Agency (“HCA”).

The Group’s principal activity is to deliver high quality homes and services which support and improve people’s 
lives and the communities in which they live. 

Strategic Review
Details of the Group’s performance for the year are set out in the Strategic Report that follows this Board report.

Board Members and Executive Directors
The present Board members and the executive directors of the Group are set out on page 2.

The Board members are drawn from a wide background bringing together professional, commercial, local and 
other relevant experience and include two resident members. The executives are the Chief Executive and the 
other members of the Group’s senior management team. 

There were no Board member appointments or resignations in the period up to the date of signing this report. 

The executives hold no interest in the Group’s shares and act as executives within the authority delegated by the 
Board.	Group	insurance	policies	indemnify	Board	members	and	officers	against	liability	when	acting	for	the	Group	
or relevant subsidiaries.

The Boards of the entities listed below have overlapping membership and hold their meetings jointly as the Radian 
Group Combined Board (“GCB”). The Chief Executive is a member of GCB.

• Radian Group Limited
• Drum Housing Association Limited
• Portal Housing Association Limited
• The Swaythling Housing Society Limited
• Windsor & District Housing Association Limited

The Board of Radian Support Limited meets separately, and two of its members are also members of GCB.

A review of Radian’s formal governance structure commenced within the year and will be concluded within 
2016/17.	The	outcome	of	the	review	will	be	reflected	within	the	next	year’s	report	and	accounts.

The Board of Management met regularly during the year and was supported by:

• Group Audit Committee (“GAC”)
• Remuneration and Resources Committee (“RARC”)
• Housing Assets and Customer Services Committee (“HASC”)
• New Business Committee (“NBC”)
• Group Finance Committee (“GFC”)

In addition, delegated authority was given by RARC to the Group’s Pensions Advisory Panel and by NBC to 
Executive Appraisal Panel (“EAP”).
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Board Report
continued

Board Members and Executive Directors continued
Membership and Remuneration of the Board and Group Committees

Board members of  
Radian Group Limited Other Group roles

Board movements 
01/04/15 – 31/03/16

Annualised 
fees*

Member 
of Group 
Combined
BoardJoined Left

Carol Bode (Chair) Group Chair, Member of NBC   £16,200 Y
Mandy Clarke Chair of RARC   £8,000 Y
Mike Collis Resident, Member of HASC and RARC   £6,250 Y
Oliver Graham Chair of GFC, Member of NBC and RARC   £8,000 Y
Colin Hessey Resident, Member of HASC   £6,250 Y
Bridget Phelps Radian Support Board Chair, Member of NBC   £6,250** Y
Simon Porter Chair of GAC, Member of HASC   £8,000 Y

Lindsay Todd Member of NBC and GFC n/a Y

*Fees are payable to Board members in accordance with Group policy. Members of GCB who are not members of the Parent Company 
Board are remunerated by the respective Associations that they act for. Any member of GCB who also chairs a Group Committee 
receives a supplementary fee paid by the Company.

**Bridget Phelps also received a Board Chair fee of £2,350 for chairing Radian Support Board.

Corporate Governance Statement
The respective purpose and remit of the sub-committees are outlined below:

Group Audit Committee
The	purpose	and	remit	of	this	committee	is	to	ensure	effective	controls,	by	reviewing,	advising,	or	deciding	 
upon these matters, as authorised by the Board of Management:

• Internal control framework and internal audit;
• Risk management and scanning of the external environment;
• Insurance;
•	 Review	of	financial	statements;
• Monitoring the objectiveness and independence of external audit;
•	 Review	of	critical	accounting	policies	and	significant	judgments	and	estimates;
• Responsibility for Health and Safety;
•	 The	effectiveness	and	role	of	the	committee.
GAC	makes	regular	reports	to	the	Board	and	met	five	times	during	the	year.

Remuneration and Resources Committee
The purpose and remit of this committee is to review, advise or decide upon matters, as authorised by  
the Board of Management:

•	 Board	and	committee	effectiveness,	board	member	recruitment	succession	and	terms	of	appointment;
• Executive recruitment, terms of employment, remuneration, performance and annual objectives;
•	 	Staff	remuneration	and	benefits	policy	(including	pensions),	staff	employment	contracts,	condition	 

of service and Human Resource (“HR”) policies, changes to organisational structure;
•	 Staff	engagement;
•	 	Plans,	performance,	efficiency,	and	resourcing	of	corporate	services,	HR,	communications,	and	 

learning and development strategies;
•	 Issues	arising	under	the	non-contractual	payments	and	benefits	policy,	or	employment	litigation.
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Board Report
continued

Housing Assets and Customer Services Committee
The role and remit of this committee is to oversee housing, asset management and customer service, and Value 
for Money (“VfM”) strategy in all parts of the Group, by reviewing, advising, or deciding upon these matters, as 
authorised by the Board of Management:

• Monitoring of service delivery performance and VfM outcomes;
• Approving performance measures and targets and recommending Group VfM targets;
• Advising on service delivery resources;
• Reviewing service delivery strategies and approving relevant policies.

New Business Committee
The purpose and remit of this committee is to:
• Make decisions regarding the submission of bids for new capital or revenue projects or programmes;
•  Make decisions regarding the development or acquisition of capital or revenue projects or programmes, 

including the acquisition of tenanted stock;
•  Make decisions regarding home ownership and market rent lettings transactions;
•  Make decisions regarding the disposal of existing Radian owned land or property;
•  Make decisions regarding joint ventures with third parties and partnership agreements with third parties 

involving contractual obligations;
•  Monitor contract and consultant performance, HCA programme delivery, Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) 

and risk management associated with the approved projects and programmes;
•	 	Delegate	authority	for	decision	making	to	the	Chief	Executive	Officer	via	EAP	in	accordance	with	agreed	

parameters	for	financial	appraisal	and	risk	management;
•	 	Monitor	and	ensure	the	effectiveness	and	role	of	NBC;
•  Keep members of GCB appraised of new initiatives and opportunities under consideration.

Group Finance Committee
The purpose and remit of this committee is to review, advise, or decide upon these matters, as authorised  
by GCB:
•	 Budgets,	plans	and	financial	operations;
• Treasury and investment matters;
• Pensions and pension investment strategy;
• Financial risks;
•	 The	effectiveness	and	role	of	the	committee.

Pensions and Advisory Panel
The purpose of the Pensions Advisory Panel is to:
• Provide a forum and source of expertise to consider pensions issues for the Group and its employees;
•  Monitor and make recommendations to RARC about the Pensions Trust or other pensions providers  

with regards to the Group’s pension scheme;
• Advise RARC on pensions, as required;
•	 Decide	on	matters	specifically	delegated	to	it	by	RARC.

Executive Appraisal Panel
The purpose of EAP is to monitor activity under Radian’s Development Strategy, appraise and monitor 
development and other new business projects, and advise NBC or take decisions on those matters where  
NBC has delegated authority to EAP.

Corporate Governance Statement continued
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Board Report
continued

Service Contracts
The	Chief	Executive	and	other	executives	are	employed	on	the	same	terms	as	other	staff	and	have	notice	periods	
ranging from three to six months.

Other Benefits
The	executive	directors	are	entitled	to	other	benefits	such	as	the	provision	of	a	car	allowance	and	health	care	
insurance.

Pensions
The executive directors are members of the Radian Group Pension Scheme (“RGPS”). They participate in the 
sections of the schemes on the same terms as all other employee members of those sections and the Group 
contributes to the sections of the scheme on behalf of its employees.

Resident Involvement
The Group actively encourages involvement in decision-making by residents (tenants, leaseholders, shared 
owners). The following mechanisms support involvement:

• Currently, at least one member of GCB is a resident;
•	 	We	have	five	Area	Panels,	of	which	the	majority	of	members	are	residents	and	which	scrutinise	and	advise	 

on the quality of local services and service planning;
•	 	A	Residents	Council	scrutinises	Group	performance	and	advises	on	policies	and	plans	affecting	customers.	 

Its membership includes representatives of the Area Panels and independently appointed residents;
• The Residents Council Chair attends GCB meetings as an observer;
• The Group Chair has a standing invitation to attend Residents Council meetings.

Involvement of People We Support
The Group has encouraged involvement in decision-making by people we support. During the year, the “Have 
Your Say Committee” provided insight into how people we support have experienced our services in their lives.

Governance and Regulation
The Group’s operations are carried out in accordance with the Housing Acts and regulated by the Regulation 
Committee of the HCA, and in respect of the care and support activities of the Group, are regulated by the Care 
Quality Commission (“CQC”).

The Group complies with the main requirements of the National Housing Federation (“NHF”) Code of Governance 
2015 and the NHF Code of Conduct 2012.

GAC has agreed a protocol with the external auditor which sets out policies for determining what non-audit work 
can be undertaken by the external auditor and procedures for periodic review and selection of the external auditor. 
The	level	of	fees	paid	for	this	work	is	set	out	in	note	6	to	the	financial	statements.

Internal Control Statement
The Board acknowledges its ultimate responsibility for establishing and maintaining the whole system of internal 
control that is appropriate to the various business environments in which it operates and for reviewing the 
effectiveness	of	those	controls.	This	applies	to	all	companies	and	subsidiaries	within	the	Group.	These	controls	
are designed to give reasonable assurance in respect of:

•	 the	reliability	of	financial	and	operational	information	used	within	the	Group	or	for	publication;
• the maintenance of proper accounting records; and
• the safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposal.

The Board recognises that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance or eliminate all risk.  
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk and to provide reasonable assurance that key business 
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Board Report
continued

objectives and expected outcomes are achieved. It also exists to give reasonable assurance about the preparation 
and	reliability	of	financial	and	operational	information	and	the	safeguarding	of	the	Company’s,	and	the	Group’s,	
assets and interests.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board has adopted a risk-based approach to internal controls that are 
embedded within the normal management and governance processes. This approach, consistent with past 
practice, includes the regular evaluation of the nature and extent of risks to which the Group is exposed and  
in regularly scanning the external environment.

The	process	adopted	by	the	Board	in	reviewing	the	effectiveness	of	the	system	of	internal	control,	together	 
with some of the key elements of the control framework includes:

Identification and evaluation of key risks
Management	responsibility	has	been	clearly	defined	for	the	identification,	evaluation	and	control	of	significant	
risks. There is a formal and ongoing process of management review in each area of the Group’s activities. The 
process is co-ordinated through a regular reporting framework by GAC and reporting to the Board. The Executive 
Team	regularly	considers	reports	on	significant	risks	facing	the	Group	and	the	Director	of	Corporate	Services	
reports	to	the	Board	on	any	significant	changes	affecting	key	risks.	In	addition,	GFC	keeps	financial	risk	under	
review	and	advises	the	Board.	The	Board	formally	reviews	strategic	and	financial	risk	at	least	once	every	year.

Monitoring and corrective action
A	process	of	control	self-assessment	(within	each	directorate),	culminating	in	an	annual	self	assessment	sign	off	
by Group Executive Directors, along with regular management reporting on control issues (throughout the Group) 
provides assurance to successive levels of management and to the Board. This includes a formal procedure for 
ensuring	that	corrective	action	is	taken	in	relation	to	any	significant	control	issues,	particularly	those	with	a	material	
impact	on	the	financial	statements.	In	addition,	the	Group	continues	to	use	an	outsourced	internal	audit	function	
to monitor and highlight any issues across the Group as expanded upon below.

Control environment and control procedures
The	Board	retains	responsibility	for	a	defined	range	of	issues	covering	strategic,	operational,	financial	and	
compliance issues. The Group’s Standing Orders set out terms of reference for all Boards and Committees.

They also set out the Group’s policies with regard to the quality, integrity and ethics of its employees and Board 
Members. A framework of policies and procedures with which employees must comply support these. These 
cover issues such as delegated authority, segregation of duties, accounting, treasury management, health and 
safety, data and asset protection and fraud prevention and detection. Annual employee appraisal procedures 
maintain standards of performance.

The GCB has adopted the 2015 NHF Code Excellence in Governance (“the Code of Governance”), and the 2012 
NHF Code of Conduct for Members (“the Code of Conduct”). Radian commits to publish a statement regarding 
any	areas	of	non-compliance,	on	its	public	website,	and	in	its	statutory	annual	report	and	financial	statements.

The Board considers that the Group is fully compliant with both the Code of Governance and Code of Conduct.

GCB	expects	the	Group’s	Board	and	Committee	members,	involved	residents	and	staff	to	abide	by	the	Radian	
Code of Conduct, which is based on a model provided in the NHF Code of Conduct.

Information and financial reporting systems
Forecasts	and	budgets	are	prepared	which	allow	the	Board	and	Management	to	monitor	the	key	financial	
objectives	and	progress	towards	achieving	financial	plans	set	for	the	year	and	the	medium	term.	Regular	
management accounts and KPIs for service standards and progress against operational plans are prepared, 
providing	up-to-date	financial	and	other	information	with	significant	variances	investigated	and	reported	as	
appropriate.

Internal Control Statement continued
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New business
All	significant	new	initiatives,	major	commitments	and	investment	projects	are	subject	to	formal	authorisation	
procedures, either through EAP, NBC, or the Board, according to delegations set out in the Standing Orders.

Group Audit Committee
GAC reviews reports from Management, internal auditors and external auditors to provide reasonable assurance 
that the control procedures are in place and are being followed. This includes a regular review of the major risks 
facing the Group. GAC makes regular reports to the Boards.

Fraud, bribery, money laundering and whistleblowing
A Group-wide fraud prevention policy and response plan are in place, and all incidents are reported to GAC and 
recorded in a register reviewed annually by that Committee. The policy covers prevention, detection and reporting 
of fraud and the recovery of assets. The Board, via GAC, has reviewed the fraud register. A Group whistle-blowing 
policy is also in place. Controls to mitigate the risk of bribery and money laundering, and procedures for identifying 
potential incidents are in place. All of these areas are dealt with by our “Raising Serious Concerns at Work” policy.

The internal control framework and the risk management process are subject to periodic review by internal 
auditors who are responsible for providing independent assurance to the Board via GAC. The internal auditors 
have	confirmed	that	for	the	12	months	ended	31	March	2016	Radian	has	adequate	and	effective	control	and	
governance processes to manage the achievement of the Group’s objectives. GAC considers control and risk  
at each of its meetings during the year.

Board Review of Effectiveness of Internal Controls
The	Board	has	conducted	its	annual	review	of	the	effectiveness	of	the	system	of	internal	controls,	receiving	
assurance	from	GAC	that	controls	have	operated	effectively	throughout	the	year.	

The	Board	has	received	reports	on	compliance	with	the	HCA’s	Economic	&	Consumer	Standards	and	certifies	
that	the	Group	is	compliant	with	the	Governance	&	Financial	Viability	Standard.	The	HCA	reconfirmed	Radian’s	
regulatory rating for governance and viability as G1 and V1 respectively (“G1 V1”) in February 2016.

Health, Safety and Wellbeing
The Group has detailed health, safety and wellbeing policies and procedures which are managed to protect our 
employees,	visitors,	contractors,	residents	and	members	of	the	public	from	harm.	We	also	provide	staff	training	
and education on health, safety and wellbeing matters. 

KPIs monitor compliance and performance within the safety management system. Compliance is reported to  
GAC and the Board on a quarterly basis.

Going Concern
In its consideration of going concern, the Board has reviewed the Group’s expected income and expenditure 
performance	in	terms	of	profitability	and	cash	flow,	together	with	an	appraisal	of	the	effects	of	its	development	
programme where the basis of these projections are based on prudent data and realistic assumptions.

The Group’s budget and business plan, taking account of the current uncertain economic climate and expected 
trading conditions show that Radian Group should be able to operate within its current facilities and comply with 
its banking covenants for the foreseeable future.

After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of at least twelve months after the  
date	on	which	the	report	and	the	financial	statements	are	signed.	For	this	reason,	it	continues	to	adopt	the	 
going	concern	basis	in	the	financial	statements.

Board Report
continued

Internal Control Statement continued
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Board Report
continued

Auditor
In the case of each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the date when this report  
is approved:

•	 	so	far	as	each	of	the	Directors	is	aware,	there	is	no	relevant	audit	information	(as	defined	in	the	Companies	Act	
2006) of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

•  each of the Directors has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves 
aware	of	any	relevant	audit	information	(as	defined)	and	to	establish	that	the	Company’s	auditor	is	aware	of	 
that information.

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Board Report was approved by the Board on 14 September 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Carol Bode 
Chair
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Our Business Model
The Group’s principal activity is to deliver high quality homes and services which support and improve people’s 
lives and the communities in which they live. The Company’s principal activity is the provision of central support 
services to Group entities. 

The Group owns, manages, and has an investment in 24,551 properties (2015: 24,776) in local authority areas in 
south central and south west England. During the year we added 229 properties (2015: 389) in aggregate, before 
sales and loan redemptions. Of the 21,003 housing properties (2015: 20,903) the Group owns and manages, 67% 
(2015:	67%)	are	general	needs	or	affordable	rented	accommodation,	predominantly	for	families	or	the	elderly,	8%	
(2015: 8%) are shared ownership properties, 8% (2015: 7%) are supported housing and housing for the elderly and 
the balance is market, other social rented or other rented accommodation.

The	Group	has	housing	fixed	assets	with	a	depreciated	cost	of	£1,137m	(2015:	£1,107m).	The	Group	has	bought	
homes from local authorities by way of inventory transfers. It has developed or acquired, when new, the majority  
of the rest of the homes it owns. The ex-local authority homes have been subject to a programme of repair and  
all of the homes owned have been maintained to a good standard. The Group employed an average of 1,074 full 
time equivalent employees during the year (2015: 1,166), calculated on the basis of a 37 hour week. The registered 
office	and	the	south	western	activities	of	the	Group	occupy	a	single	purpose-built	complex	in	Eastleigh.	There	are	
also	main	offices	in	Petersfield	and	Windsor	and	area	offices	in	Aylesbury,	Slough	and	Ringwood.

The Group measures its performance primarily by monitoring the KPIs set by its Board, which are scrutinised by 
HASC	and	the	Residents	Council.	The	KPIs	are	a	combination	of	financial	and	operational	targets	for	performance	
in areas that include rent arrears, rent losses from voids and bad debts, customer satisfaction and repairs. Our 
outcomes are subject to regulation by the HCA and our loan covenants are agreed with our lenders. 

Future Developments
The Group will continue to deliver new homes. Under the current structure the majority of new homes are likely  
to	be	built	by	The	Swaythling	Housing	Society	Limited,	financed	by	sales	of	existing	homes	to	Portal	Housing	
Association,	thereby	increasing	the	inventory	holdings	of	the	Group.	The	Group	will	finance	purchases	of	homes	
through the cash it has and the cash it receives through bond issues.

To	mitigate	the	impact	of	the	rent	reduction,	we	initially	identified	savings	in	our	Group	operational	costs	of	£7.5m	
over four years, which has now been increased to £9.0m.

We	forecast	future	business	performance,	remodelling	twice	a	year	and	more	often	if	significant	changes	to	the	
regulatory and economic environment are experienced. We review the underlying assumptions regularly to ensure 
that these are still in line with the economic environment.

We	stress	test	the	model	to	include	the	financial	impact	of	the	major	risks	to	the	organisation	we	have	identified.	
We have also included the rent reductions announced in the July 2015 budget, and have stress tested our 
performance were further reductions to be announced, using a number of multi-variate scenarios. 

The VRTB impact has been reviewed, but not included, as it would mask our underlying performance and would 
be expected to have an initial positive impact. Welfare reforms have been reviewed and increased voids and 
arrears	are	part	of	the	stress	testing	in	the	financial	model.	

We	also	model	increases	in	forecast	inflation	and	interest	rates,	and	the	impact	that	this	will	have	on	performance.	
This business plan and multi-variate stress testing is reviewed by our Board to ensure that we can continue 
developing	homes	and	supporting	our	vision,	and	mitigating	actions	are	identified	to	ensure	that	we	can	remain	
viable	and	cope	with	significantly	more	adverse	economic	and	regulatory	changes.

Our Progress Towards Achieving Our Strategic Goals
Our	Corporate	Plan	sets	our	strategic	goals	for	a	three	year	period	and	our	annual	Operational	Plan	identifies	the	
objectives for each year to ensure these goals are met. These objectives are cascaded through directorate and 
team	plans	and	translated	as	staff	objectives.	We	implement	a	comprehensive	consultation	programme	each	 
year to ensure the Corporate Plan and Operational Plans are refreshed, relevant, achievable and challenging.  

Strategic Report
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The Executive Team and GCB monitor progress against our Corporate Plan on a quarterly basis.

This sets out our progress towards achieving the aims of our 2015-2018 ‘Smarter’ corporate plan which is  
outlined on page 20.

1. “Smarter Services: 75% of customers say we listen to them and focus communication and service on  
them as individuals” 
“Implement a new customer relationship management (CRM) system which provides comprehensive household 
data, contact and service preferences”
Phase	1	was	implemented	and	staff	across	the	business	received	training,	including	customer	contact	and	
complaints teams. Phase 2, which has been planned for 2016/17, will cover anti-social behaviour, Home 
Ownership	Equity	&	Loan	and	household	profiling.	

“Manage	the	change	to	benefits	paid	direct	to	customers	with	minimal	impact	on	rent	collection	level”
Despite the challenges of welfare reform, we maintained a strong focus on income collection across all our 
activities, continuing to strengthen and improve the performance of both our Income team and our commercial 
leasehold operation. We continue to improve collection of service charges. At the end of March 2016 our ‘all 
income’ annualised income collection performance was 100.5% (2015: 99.4%). This represents collection of 
£112.3m of our rent debit of £111.7m. The year also saw Radian’s best ever arrears performance, 1.75% (2015: 
1.82%).	We	monitor	arrears	from	tenants,	excluding	housing	benefit	paid	directly	to	us	by	local	authorities.

“Provide	effective	two-way	communication	with	all	people	we	support”
Two new Have Your Say and Safeguarding groups were started during the year within Radian Support and 
contributed to the review of communication methods and formation of a Communication Strategy project group. 
People we support were assisted to create ‘communication passports’. The ‘Safeguarding pledge’ was approved 
and launched and the ‘Driving up Quality’ and ‘Personalisation’ action plans both progressed. We received 
accreditation from the National Autistic Society for our specialist autism services.

“Deliver a Value for Money dividend of £3m”
In 2015/16 we produced a comprehensive VfM statement in response to the strengthened ‘asset management 
and transparency’ challenges of the regulator. Our VfM statement and web resource was approved by GCB and 
accepted by the HCA (we maintained our G1 V1 rating). We were also rated A1 by Moody’s. 

A new 2016-20 VfM strategy was prepared and adopted by GCB in March 2016.

Further information on our VfM performance is outlined in the VfM statement on pages 35 to 37.

“Increase the use of the MyRadian web portal to 10,000 customers”
Our new MyRadian portal was launched in June and now includes a revised intuitive design, Direct Debit 
functionality and is fully accessible through all mobile devices. Radian Direct promoted the portal and by 31 March 
2016, 7,803 customers had registered for MyRadian (an online account for their rent, repairs, tenancy etc.). As we 
have exceeded our Operational Plan target for 2015/16, we are focusing on registering a total of 10,000 
households by March 2018. 

2. “Smarter Growth: We complete 1,800 new homes and secure a minimum of 1% surplus from Radian 
Support activities”
We contracted for 939 homes (of which contracts for 74 homes are pending the issue of a Local Authority Deed of 
Variation for the Mortgagee in Possession clause in the s.106) during 2015/16 and our three year estimate is over 
1,800 completions. 

As noted on page 21, the Radian Support budget strategy has historically required the business to budget to 
achieve a small cash surplus in the underlying operations. Due to increasingly aggressive tenders and the rise in 
agency	costs,	it	has	become	difficult	to	sustain	our	business	model,	and	we	have	decided	to	transfer	the	care	and	
support	services	to	other	providers.	This	decision	has	been	ratified	by	both	Radian	Support	and	Group	Combined	
Boards	and	was	announced	in	April	2016	(more	details	are	provided	in	note	27	to	the	financial	statements).

Strategic Report
continued

Our Progress Towards Achieving Our Strategic Goals continued
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“Own and manage 750 market rent homes”
We launched our SMART. market rent brand and handed over a scheme at Goldsworth Reach, Woking.

“Generate £3m cross-subsidy through market sales”
We entered into contract for the construction of 100 homes on land acquired from the HCA at Whitehill-Bordon 
and anticipate generating in excess of £1.8m cross subsidy through market sales, over halfway towards our three 
year target of £3m. We continue to investigate potential opportunities relating to market rent and market sale and 
identified	a	number	of	further	schemes	on	which	offers	were	made	and	accepted.	

“Radian Build will complete 30 homes”
Development	and	Radian	Build	worked	on	sites	in	Southampton,	Ascot	and	Petersfield	and	completed	22	homes.	
Radian Build started tendering for future developments and are in contract or on site for a further seven homes.

“Strengthen Radian Support and ensure its viability”
Following the strategic review of Radian Support, a number of options were explored to identify the best way  
to	ensure	that	arrangements	for	the	future	of	Radian	Support	would	enable	the	people	we	support	to	flourish.	 
A cross directorate focus group was convened to ensure there was a robust assessment and evaluation of each 
option. As noted above, we have taken the decision to withdraw from providing these services. 

“Analyse,	and	implement	where	required,	different	business	models	and	funding	options	to	sustain	Radian	
Support operations”
Key	ways	of	reducing	voluntary	staff	turnover	were	identified	and	recruitment	lead	time	improved,	although	agency	
spend took longer to reduce. We adapted our approach to recruitment (e.g. regional open days) and focused 
more on retention and optimising use of resource. We used recommendations from budget analysis to reduce  
our void levels.

“Maintain	and	extend	the	scope	of	the	asset	register,	which	clearly	identifies	assets	and	liabilities	within	our	stock,	
to meet the requirements of FRS 102”
Stock	that	was	fully	reconciled	in	the	previous	financial	year	was	recorded	in	a	housing	properties	database	in	
order to comply with FRS 102, the new UK accounting standard, and also to meet the need to understand our 
stock, using a comprehensive assets and liabilities register. This assets and liabilities register pulls data from 
various	sources	to	enable	us	to	appraise	our	properties	more	effectively,	helping	us	to	identify	optimum	use	 
of	our	assets,	and	where	appropriate,	consider	the	benefits	of	disposing	of	assets.	

3. “Smarter Communities: Key community stakeholders recognise the difference we make to individual and 
community sustainability quantified as £5m of social value”
Radian utilises the Housing Associations’ Charitable Trust’s (“HACT”) social value tool in order to understand, 
measure and map the social impact of community investment activities. This system that provides vital information 
on the communities we work with. It also enables the generation of bespoke area reports drawing upon a range of 
data including unemployment, crime and health.

“Our Social Insight tool recorded a social value dividend of £2,535,991 in 2015/16”
“Deliver a further 700 training places and 70 jobs through partnerships, community self-help and social 
enterprises”
Our Employment, Support and Training (“EST”) service continues to explore partnerships and promote social 
enterprise business start-up related support. At March 2016, 119 people had been supported into employment 
(84 full-time, 28 part-time and 7 self employed). 315 residents received training and 207 residents were supported 
to complete CVs. An impact assessment of our EST activities and an action plan for 2015/16 was considered by 
the GCB in December 2015.

Strategic Report
continued

Our Progress Towards Achieving Our Strategic Goals continued
2. “Smarter Growth: We complete 1,800 new homes and secure a minimum of 1% surplus from Radian 
Support activities” continued
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Strategic Report
continued

“Identify households that place the highest demand on our services, and implement an approach to improve 
tenancy sustainment whilst reducing the dependency of those households”
Detailed	methodology	research	was	completed	and	approved.	40	households	were	identified	and	received	
support relating to areas including tenancy, community, relationships and money. Our EST service during 2015/16 
helped 67 ‘hard to reach’ residents into employment.

“Implement two initiatives with health, education or social care funding”
Five healthy lifestyle projects, including health checks and awareness sessions, were run in the Roundabout café, 
Southampton. The Health Bus was launched as a joint project with local Hampshire County Council and the NHS. 
A regional ‘Health and Housing’ Conference was organised and held in early April 2016, the results from which will 
feature in a National Housing Federation publication and the Kings Fund review of best practice.

“Complete the delivery of our Older People’s Strategy 2012-17”
An action plan was put in place, and as a result of the strategic decisions around Radian Support in respect of 
discontinuing Older People support services some actions were revised during the year. At the end of March 
2016, 82% (64%) of the actions originally set were complete or in progress.

4. “Smarter Team: Our overall staff engagement index is 85%”
“Create a high-performance culture which includes cross-boundary working resulting in a 10% improvement in 
satisfaction	with	the	way	we	resolve	poor	performance	in	the	staff	engagement	survey”
In	2014	54%	of	our	survey	respondents	said	that	poor	performance	was	dealt	with	effectively.	Training	surgeries	
on	managing	poor	performance	were	provided	for	staff	and	line-managers.	Further	appraisal	guidance	was	
drafted. In our latest survey 76% of respondents said they were aware of the procedures in place for managing 
poor performance.

“Empower and develop our Leadership Team to increase our competitive advantage”
Four key executive level responsibilities were delegated to the newly-formed Senior Leadership Team (“SLT”); 
Operational Plan development, Risk Management, VfM and Directorate Action Plan monitoring. The SLT also  
start worked on the Futures project outlined in the Introduction from the Chair.

“Implement initiatives to develop engagement for teams where it is below the Group average”
Engagement increased in the year, from 82% in the prior year to 84%. People & Organisational Development 
worked with teams who registered below average engagement in the survey. This work resulted in action plans 
with S.M.A.R.T. objectives. All directorates with an engagement level below 84% increased engagement by at 
least 2%, with the exception of Radian Support which achieved 79%, (1% lower than 80% in the previous year).  
In view of the challenges faced by our sector, we are pleased with the overall improvement in employee 
engagement.

“Establish process improvement as a core business capability”
We have selected the ‘Light Touch Lean’ methodology and have carried out two ‘proof of concept’ pilots as part 
of a phased implementation.

“Elevate the value of customer-centred communication”
An audit of communication throughout Radian has been completed, and a new Communication Strategy has 
been drafted. This strategy will continue to be reviewed as we revise our Corporate and Operation Plans.

Our Progress Towards Achieving Our Strategic Goals continued
3. “Smarter Communities: Key community stakeholders recognise the difference we make to individual and 
community sustainability quantified as £5m of social value” continued
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Strategic Report
continued

‘Smarter’ Group Corporate Plan 2015-2018

Smarter 
Services
• Implement a new customer relationship 

management (CRM) system which provides 
comprehensive household profi le data, contact 
and service preferences  

• Manage the change to benefi ts paid direct 
to customers with minimal impact on rent 
collection level 

• Provide effective two-way communication with 
all people we support (PWS)

• Deliver a value for money dividend of £3m 

• Increase the use of the MyRadian 
web portal to 10,000 customers

Smarter 
Growth
• Own and manage 750 market rent homes  

• Generate £3m cross-subsidy through 
market sales 

• Radian Build will complete 30 homes

• Strengthen Radian Support and ensure its 
viability 

• Analyse, and implement where required, 
different business models and funding options 
to sustain Radian Support operations

• Maintain and extend the scope of the asset 
register to cope with Financial Reporting 
Standard 102 that clearly identifi es assets 
and liabilities within our stock

Smarter 
Communities
• Deliver a further 700 training places and 70 jobs 

through partnerships, community self-help and 
social enterprises 

• Identify households that place the highest 
demand on our services, and implement an 
approach to improve tenancy sustainment whilst 
reducing the dependency of these households  

• Implement two initiatives with health, 
education or social care funding 

• Complete the delivery of our 
Older People’s Strategy 2012-17

Smarter 
Team
• Create a high-performance culture which 

includes cross-boundary working resulting in 
a 10% improvement in satisfaction with the 
way we resolve poor performance in the staff 
engagement survey 

• Empower and develop our Leadership Team 
to increase our competitive advantage

• Implement initiatives to develop engagement 
for teams where it is below the group average 

• Establish process improvement 
as a core business capability

• Elevate the value of 
customer-centred communication  
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Strategic Report
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Corporate Strategy – Housing 
Within the wider Group Corporate Plan, the Group’s Registered Providers have a collective commercial strategy. 

Financial Performance 
The budget strategy requires the business to budget to:

•  increase its operating margin for housing annually to increase its capacity to fund new borrowings to build new 
homes – on average 600 per year; and

•  ensure that all entities within the Group achieve a surplus before tax.

The	level	of	margin	growth	and	surplus	before	tax	targeted	is	reflected	in	the	budget.	GFC	considers	any	changes	
required and recommends them to GCB for approval. 

The annual budget determines the authority delegated to the Executive to spend Group funds. The Directors are 
required to deliver within budget unless there are exceptional circumstances. 

Growth
The	business	aims	to	grow	through	adding	more	homes	at	a	rate	which	does	not	threaten	its	financial	viability.	The	
impact	of	significant	business	decisions	is	measured	through	financial	modelling	which	consists	of	the	following:

1.  Business Plan: This	reflects	a	medium	term	programme	of	development	at	a	level	which	incorporates	
developments which we have committed to the HCA to deliver, schemes under contract with developers, 
schemes that we expect to deliver, and a degree of aspirational headroom. Some longer term development is 
included when we have contracted multi phase schemes. This is considered by NBC which decides whether  
it	is	happy	for	authority	to	be	delegated	to	EAP	to	commit	to	schemes	fitting	within	that	programme.	If	they	
approve the programme, it is then recommended to the Board for approval. 

  The Group uses a scheme appraisal model which measures the theoretical cash impact of individual schemes 
on the business plan. This impact is measured through ‘notional subsidy’ an estimate of the equity required to 
be	invested	to	have	a	cash	neutral	impact	on	the	Group’s	cash	flow.	This	fits	with	our	build	and	hold	strategy	 
for appropriate assets over a 30 year period.

  The aggregate notional subsidy of the schemes modelled in the business model is calculated, and we ensure 
that	the	notional	subsidy	of	development	projects	we	commit	to	is	kept	within	the	business	plan	figure.

2.   Long-term Forecast: This extends the development programme to set out how we plan to achieve our vision 
and development growth targets in the long term. GFC considers the Long-term Forecast as it is responsible 
for deciding whether the level of targeted performance is appropriate. GFC then recommends the Long-term 
Forecast to the Board for approval. 

  The Long-term Forecast ensures that decisions made on the basis of the business plan will not cause issues  
in	the	longer	term,	and	will	fit	in	with	the	Group’s	long-term	vision.

Corporate Strategy – Capital and Treasury Management 
The	Group	has	a	relatively	complex	economic	legal	structure	and	has	undertaken	financial	engineering	to	extract	
and exploit value. The treasury policy provides clear guidance on limiting counterparty risk, whilst seeking a 
financial	return.	More	details	on	the	Group’s	capital	and	treasury	management	is	provided	on	pages	28 to 31.

Corporate Strategy – Care and Support
The care and support business has had its own corporate strategy within the wider Group Corporate Plan.

Financial Performance
The budget strategy has historically required the business to budget to achieve a small cash surplus in the 
underlying	operations.	Due	to	increasingly	aggressive	tenders	and	the	rise	in	agency	costs,	it	has	become	difficult	to	
sustain our business model, and we have decided to transfer the care and support services to other providers. This 
decision	has	been	ratified	by	both	Radian	Support	and	Group	Combined	Boards	and	was	announced	in	April	2016.
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Strategic Report
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Treasury Management 
The	business	has	significant	accumulated	reserves	which	are	mainly	represented	by	bank	deposits.	These	are	
expected	to	cover	both	the	accounting	pension	deficits	and	also	the	obligations	on	a	funding	basis.	The	treasury	
policy provides clear guidance on limiting counterparty risk, which is the overriding risk, while seeking a 
reasonable	financial	return.

How We Measure Our Performance
The Executive Team and the wider business use a range of performance indicators to monitor all of the functional 
areas of the business. These targets are reviewed at least annually to ensure they remain appropriate and 
challenging, with actual results reviewed monthly. A selection of these performance indicators is as follows:

Financial Key Performance Indicators
These KPIs are important to the Group as they monitor our ability to generate a surplus for reinvestment and our 
ability to maintain a sustainable business.

FRS 102 Old UK GAAP

Actual
2015/16

Actual
2014/15

Actual
2013/14

Actual
2012/13

Turnover from Social Housing as % of total revenue 79% 77% 77% 77%
Surplus from social housing letting as % of total interest  
 costs 168% 109% 127% 129%
Operating margin 30% 27% 26% 28%
Net margin 16% 9% 9% 12%
Debt as a multiple of revenues 4.4 4.5 4.8 4.9
Operating surplus, adding back depreciation, as a multiple  
 of net cash interest 2.4 1.7 1.9 2.1
Turnover (£m) 143.2 141.1 131.5 122.3
Gearing 85% 86% 82% 82%
Interest cover 174% 129% 142% 153%

Corporate Strategy – Care and Support continued
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Strategic Report
continued

Non-Financial Key Performance Indicators
In	addition	to	monitoring	financial	KPIs,	we	actively	monitor	a	substantial	number	of	other	KPIs	to	assess	our	
performance and with the aim of delivering quality services to all our customers.

Target
2015/16

Actual
Q4 2015/16

Actual
 Q4 2014/15

HouseMark 
Upper Quartile

 2014/15

% of total calls answered 97.0% 92.4% 97.0% 95.6%
Quality of Radian Direct Service 92.0% 94.6% n/a n/a
Satisfaction with repairs 95.0% 98.0% 98.0% 79.3%
Repairs	completed	right	first	time 94.0% 95.0% 94.0% n/a
Respond to a minimum of 80% of initial anti social behaviour  
 (“ASB”) reports within one working day and draft an action  
 plan 80.0% 96.0% n/a n/a
Provide weekly progress updates to ASB complainants  
 in a minimum of 80% of cases in a format and frequency  
 determined by the customer 80.0% 92.0% n/a n/a
Satisfaction with complaint handling 73.0% 79.6% 74.4% 71.0%
Satisfaction with complaint outcome 70.0% 79.2% 72.9% 66.4%
%	of	homes	with	gas	certification 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Combined void turnaround time (days) 29.9 25.8 28.6 n/a
Social	and	Affordable	tenancies	net	current	arrears 3.0% 1.8% 1.8% 1.7%
Satisfaction with overall quality of home 85.0% 88.5% n/a 83.4%
Net arrears as % of gross rental income 3.0% 1.8% 1.8% n/a
Rent loss from voids as % of gross rents General Needs  
 (“GN”) and Housing for Older People (“HfOP”) 0.9% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6%

How We Measure Our Performance continued
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The	Group	is	committed	to	effective	business	risk	management.	The	main	risks	that	may	prevent	the	Group	
achieving its objectives are considered and reviewed quarterly by the Senior Leadership Team, Executive Team, 
GAC and Board as part of the corporate planning process. The risks are assessed with regard to external 
environment scanning and recorded in terms of their impact and probability. Major risks presenting the greatest 
threats to the Group are reported to the Board quarterly together with action taken to manage the risks and the 
outcome of the action. These risk reports include assessments of key controls used to manage the risks. The 
Group	has	identified	the	major	risks	to	successful	achievement	of	its	objectives	as	at	31	March	2016	and	these	 
are considered below.

Nature of Risk Impact Mitigations Include

Escalating liabilities 
may impact our growth 
strategy

Financial capacity to deliver planned 
growth strategy could be impaired by 
escalation of pension fund obligations 
and	contributions,	deflation,	failure	to	
deliver budget strategy, or escalation 
of interest rates, voids, property price 
deflation	or	other	costs	beyond	forecast.	

First phase of Pension project has been 
delivered; Budget strategy to increase margin 
each	year,	stress	testing	financial	plans	to	
measure sustainability; VfM strategy; next 
phase of pension strategy to reduce the impact 
of a cessation event is near completion. 

Increased arrears, either 
due to welfare reform  
or management failures

Government	welfare	benefit	changes	
and their economic impact causes rent 
arrears to increase, and prevents us 
achieving top quartile performances for 
net percentage rent collection.

Rolling Welfare Reform Action Plan, including 
awareness campaigns to ensure residents are 
aware	of	changes	to	benefits,	and	a	dedicated	
Universal	Credit	Officer	to	deal	with	claimants.	
Work undertaken to ensure our rent arrears 
processes are clear and can cope with the 
change to UC. Continuing to monitor Social 
and	Affordable	rent	arrears	which	are	tracked	
by Residents Council and HASC.

Inconsistent gas 
servicing or installation 
below standard for both 
new build and existing 
properties

Prosecution or regulatory sanction due 
to death, injury or property damage, 
resulting from poor installation or 
maintenance of gas supply.

Annual review of policy and procedure, 
management supervision and daily operational 
monitoring against due service dates. 
Radian Services are “gas safe” compliant 
and registered. Gas expertise allocated to 
development to monitor new build sites. 
External specialist engaged to undertake 
a 10% audit of gas servicing and boiler 
installations. 11 month cycle for gas servicing 
to ensure access within date. Awareness 
training for employers, agents and architects.

Availability of
funding

Financial institutions appetite for lending 
generally or investing in our sector 
reduces,	affecting	availability	of	funds	 
for development.

Open discussion channel with all lenders and 
treasury advisors. Steps taken to maximise 
availability of housing stock available for 
securing debts. Financial modelling – long  
term forecast and business plan. Treasury 
policy requires committed funding to be 
available to meet contractual obligations. 
Shorter term cash forecast is modelled with 
input from development to ensure no deviation 
from the Business Plan. Deferred bonds 
issued. 

Strategic Report
continued
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Nature of Risk Impact Mitigations Include

Risk to Radian's 
regulatory judgment 
grading

Radian loses its G1 V1 regulatory 
judgment grading due to failure to 
meet HCA requirements in respect of 
governance and viability standards.

Board scrutiny of compliance with NHF codes, 
annual review of internal controls and horizon 
scanning by governance and executive teams 
on regulatory issues. Assets and Liabilities 
Register in place, with an A&L Steering Group 
proactively monitoring related issues. Annual 
internal audit programme, regular reporting 
of management accounts and VfM strategy 
progress. Group Finance Committee scrutiny 
of funding. Long Term Forecast, Business Plan 
and Treasury Management subject to external 
treasury advice and analysis on a range of 
scenario testing. Compliance KPI now included 
within board dashboard, including quarterly 
monitoring of Governance and Financial 
Viability Standards.

Interest rate risk impact 
on Radian financial 
business plan

The timing and scale of interest rate rises 
could	throw	Radian	off	course	because	
of the impact on our budget of the 
increased variable loan costs.

Quarterly treasury management reporting to 
GFC and GCB. Treasury policy requirements  
re	fixed	to	floating	ratio	(page	29). Monitoring  
of repayments and loan maturity options.  
Any	proposed	change	to	fixed	or	floating	loans	
requires approval from GFC, and scenario 
testing on business plans is produced at  
least twice a year.

We are unable to seize 
strategic opportunities 
offered by VRTB

Radian	suffers	a	net	loss	of	stock	and	a	
reduction in the asset base against which 
we can borrow to fund development, due 
to an inability to capitalise on VRTB under 
the newly agreed arrangements.

Consistent	flow	of	enquiries	and	applications	
under current RTB scheme managed within 
the home ownership team. A project group 
established to assess potential impact and 
resource capacity in the event of the policy 
becoming live will meet as required subject to 
further announcements. Monitoring of VRTB 
legislation and implementation is ongoing.

Loss of Critical IT 
Services if Radian or 
our key suppliers were 
to experience financial 
difficulties / late payment 
by Radian

The continuity of IT systems and services 
in	a	financial	distress	situation	could	be	
critical. Requirement to identify suppliers 
and services that would need to be 
maintained in order to provide continuity 
of service to our customers.

Microsoft products covered under a perpetual 
licensing agreement; Core business systems 
covered by annual licensing, support and 
maintenance agreements, and there is potential 
to continue to use systems unsupported. All 
core business systems are currently hosted on 
Radian premises and supported by internal IT 
team;	the	financial	stability	of	key	suppliers	is	
monitored, and Radian has the ability to restrict 
or deny external supplier access to core 
business systems. Escrow agreements are in 
place to make source code available to Radian, 
should suppliers cease trading. Multiple hardware 
suppliers are used. Regular budget control 
meetings take place between Finance Business 
Partner and Head of IT to identify any budget/
funding issues; the IT steering group also 
monitor funding and budgets on a regular basis.

Strategic Report
continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued
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Nature of Risk Impact Mitigations Include

Increased voids Increased voids lead to rising void costs 
and void loss.

Voids are monitored by service managers in 
Radian Services and allocations co-ordinators 
in Housing who have regular void meetings. 
KPIs related to voids are reported to HARP and 
HASC and monitored through benchmarking 
with Housemark. Residents Council scrutinise 
our performance on a quarterly basis.

Credit risk Escalating costs of borrowing and current 
funding (including deferred bond future 
funds and cash and cash equivalents) 
disappearing due to failure of 
counterparties.

Treasury policy, monitoring and review of the 
credit ratings of institutions we would use; 
periodic email rating alerts from TradeRisks, 
our external treasury advisers. We do not enter 
into development unless we have cash or 
committed facilities as per our treasury policy.

Failure to meet 
Development's corporate 
objective

Inability	to	meet	Development's	financial	
contribution required by the business 
plan. This may be caused by: - inability 
to secure suitable development 
opportunities - rising build costs - sales 
and rental revenues falling or not meeting 
expectations - sales rates not meeting 
forecast - customer mortgage availability 
falling - consumer demand falling - cost 
of borrowing increasing. 

Management monitoring including key stage 
approvals; Project groups to review schemes; 
Staff	training	and	development.	Responsibilities	
clarified	since	team	restructuring	in	2015;	
monthly development programmes board 
recommendations.

Failure to comply 
with health and safety 
obligations

Failure to comply with health and safety 
obligations as an employer, landlord, 
developer and provider of care and 
support. Failure could result in serious 
injury or ill-health, loss of life or damage 
to property with resultant impact on 
Radian's reputation, income, civil or 
criminal proceedings and associated 
fines	and/or	imprisonments,	disruption	to	
services and impact on individuals’ and 
families’ lives and wellbeing.

Comprehensive H&S management system 
in place. Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Strategy and monitoring of associated KPIs, 
comprehensive suite of H&S policies and 
procedures in place, appointment of Primary 
Authority Lead to provide advice on Food and 
Fire Safety, risk assessments carried out on all 
significant	risks	to	properties	and	individuals.	
Competent H&S professionals (Chartered 
status) employed to provide suitable and 
sufficient	advice.	Regular	audit	and	inspection	
regime in place (internal and external) for all 
significant	risks.	Suite	of	H&S	training	available	
via e-learning and classroom sessions. Well 
developed methods of communicating Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing messages are in place. 
H&S consultation via committees, including 
staff	forum	representatives.	

Strategic Report
continued
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Nature of Risk Impact Mitigations Include

Radian role and strategic 
direction

Failure of the Board and Management 
Team	to	define	the	role	of	the	organisation	
and set an appropriate strategic direction.

Board strategic away-days (June 2015, 
January 2016). Executive strategic discussion 
included on agenda of every Executive Team 
meeting; Business planning cycle; BPC dates 
managed in Compliance; Annual operational 
plan, which is the operational expression of the 
approved 3 year strategy; Quarterly reporting 
of operational plan progress to Executive Team 
and GCB.

Unable to sustain 
services due to 
insufficient skilled and 
competent staff to meet 
obligations

This risk could have led to unsafe service 
and/or breaches of contractual obligation 
due to failure to recruit and retain skilled 
and	competent	staff	or	succession	plan.

We implemented Moving Forward on People 
(“MFOP”) succession planning tool in 2015/16. 
The	staffing	structure	provided	dedicated	
recruitment	staff	and	process	to	minimise	
recruitment lag. Induction, refresher training 
and screening was carried out in line with  
CQC regulations/Care Act. 

Failure to deliver Radian 
Support’s business 
strategy

Radian Support’s strategy has changed 
during the year. The impact of the risk 
was initially that Radian Support would fail 
to achieve its growth targets due to failure 
to	control	costs	and	generate	sufficient	
revenue. Given changes regarding the 
future direction of Radian Support, the 
impact of risks has changed. 

All schemes have been appraised every month 
to identify non-viable schemes and actions 
implemented to remodel or exit from services. 
The future direction of Radian Support was 
agreed at the Group Combined Board (GCB) 
meeting in December 2015. Since then a 
project team has been in place to provide 
additional Board oversight of the transfer 
process. 

Radian Support may 
not meet regulatory 
requirements leading 
to legal and/or financial 
consequences

The impact of the original risk was that 
Radian Support might not meet the more 
robust inspection regime and regulatory 
requirements of CQC, leading to legal 
and/or	financial	consequences	and	
potential regulatory issues with the HCA.

There have been formal monitoring procedures 
around CQC registration and inspection 
visits. All key lines of enquiry following CQC 
inspections were audited over the year and 
action plans were approved and monitored by 
Locality Managers and Heads of Operations.

Harm to people we 
support and our 
reputation 

Any harm to the people that we support 
carries reputational risk. We have a duty 
of care to ensure that Radian Support 
delivers	safe	and	effective	care	and	
support services and manages 
environments to mitigate the risk  
of major incidents.

Safeguarding procedures, inspection visits 
and formal monitoring procedures have 
been in place throughout the year and have 
continued during the transfer process. 
Business continuity plans and communication 
protocols are in place. Electronic reporting 
designed	to	improve	efficiency	was	introduced	
in January 2016. Health and Safety (“H&S”) 
compliance continues to be monitored at all 
levels throughout the transfer process. Risk 
assessments and management plans are in 
place for all services and individuals. 

Strategic Report
continued
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Nature of Risk Impact Mitigations Include

Inaccurate financial 
information or 
assumptions lead to 
flawed business decisions 
by Radian Support

Radian Support may be failing to win 
some business, or taking on contracts 
that it would be better not to, because of 
lack of accurate information to support 
the	financial	assumptions	used.	Incorrect	
information means budget management 
is	inherently	flawed	leading	to	inability	to	
remedy	deficit	issues	and	puts	ongoing	
surplus at risk.

Monthly	financial	surgeries.	Monitoring	of	
budget bridging plan for 2015/16 to highlight 
remodelling or exit of services. Cost model in 
place.	Contract	sign	off	procedure	between	
Finance/Operations agreed as part of 
Partnership Agreement. Finance Scorecard.

The outcome of the British referendum to leave the UK was announced on 24 June 2016. We recognise that this 
will lead to greater uncertainty in the short to medium term, but believe that we have entered this uncertainty from 
a position of strength.

GAC and GCB review strategic risk to Radian Group on a regular basis. These include risks arising from Radian’s 
care and support function which are also monitored by the Board of Radian Support Limited.

Capital and Treasury Management
Radian	Group	is	financed	by	a	combination	of	revenue	reserves,	long-term	loan	facilities,	bond	finance	and	Social	
Housing Grant received from Government. 

Radian has a Group wide treasury policy with tests that apply to the Group as a whole. The policy requires  
the	Group	to	maintain	a	minimum	level	of	liquidity	such	that	there	is	sufficient	cash	and	committed	loan	facilities	
capable of immediate draw down to cover the next six months forecast cash requirement. The Group must also 
have	sufficient	cash	and	committed	loan	facilities,	though	not	necessarily	capable	of	immediate	draw	down,	to	
cover the higher of committed development spend and the next eighteen months forecast cash requirement.  
The policy also prioritises a lack of reliance on any one counterparty, whether through cash holdings or  
available facilities.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued
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Capital Structure 
Group borrowings amounted to £624.1m (2015: £630.0m) of which £16.3m is due to be paid within the next year. 

During the year the Group secured additional funding. In July 2015, the Group sold £50.0m of the 2049 retained 
bond at a premium of £7.1m. £0.6m was received immediately, with £13.7m due in May 2016 and three further 
instalments of £14.3m receivable in May 2017, 2018 and 2019 respectively. The investor has contracted to make 
these payments. 

In May 2016 the Group sold £25m of the 2049 retained bond and £12.5m of the previously repurchased 2042 
bond.	Details	of	these	transactions	are	disclosed	in	note	27	to	the	financial	statements.

Debt Repayment Profile
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Interest Rate Management
The	Group	borrows,	principally	from	banks	at	both	fixed	and	floating	rates	of	interest.	The	Group’s	policy	was	to	
keep	between	50%	and	80%	of	its	borrowings	at	fixed	rates	of	interest	during	the	year.	During	the	year	the	Board	
agreed	to	increase	the	upper	limit	on	fixed	rate	borrowings,	and	the	fixed	rate	element	was	increased	to	83%	by	
converting	£100m	of	floating	rate	debt	to	fixed	rate	on	a	five	year	amortising	basis.	In	December	2015,	we	re-fixed	
the	first	£20m	tranche	of	this	fix	due	to	expire	in	April	2016	for	a	further	5	years.

Capital and Treasury Management continued
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Fixed and Floating Debt
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Total debt of £624.1m at 31 March 2016 consisted of:
•	 82%	fixed	and	18%	variable	rate	debt;
•	 £337.0m	of	embedded	interest	rate	swaps	and	£167.9m	of	fixed	interest	bonds;	and
• All swaps are embedded in loan arrangements and there are no options in the portfolio.

Currency Risk 
The Group borrows and lends only in sterling and is not exposed to currency risk. 

Financial Loan Covenant Compliance
Financial loan covenants are primarily measured by interest cover, gearing ratios, debt per home limits and asset 
cover based on property asset values. Covenants are constantly monitored and reported to the Board on a 
quarterly	basis.	There	were	no	breaches	of	financial	or	non-financial	covenants	during	the	year.	

Surplus Assets for Future Debt Security
As at 31 March 2016 the Group had over 4,700 unsecured completed housing properties not required for 
charging	to	existing	debt	facilities.	These	are	sufficient	to	raise	over	£327.0m	of	future	new	debt	on	an	asset	cover	
ratio of 1.05% for Existing Use Value as Social Housing (“EUV-SH”) properties and 1.15% for Market Value - 
Tenanted (“MV-T”) properties.

In addition, we expect the current development programme to complete 446 properties in the period to 31 March 
2017 funded by cash resources.

Capital and Treasury Management continued
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Strategic Report
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Future Funding Options 
At	31	March	2016,	£208.1m	of	finance	was	available	to	Radian	Group,	£59.6m	of	which	was	cash	and	short	 
term	investments,	and	£148.5m	will	be	received	through	the	deferred	bond.	This	is	sufficient	funding	over	the	 
next 28 months (from the date of this report) to November 2018 for all committed and pipeline developments  
and	the	contractually	committed	affordable	rent	programme.	

The	Group	has	sufficient	funds	for	its	current	needs	but	has	the	remaining	bonds	available	for	sale	to	enable	
further investment. 

Assets and Liabilities Register
As noted previously (page 18), one of our strategic goals is to maintain and extend our assets and liabilities 
register. This brings together information from our housing management system, property databases and other 
reporting systems through our intranet. Much of the work this year involved producing the data required on an 
individual property basis to comply with FRS 102. We have also improved details of restrictions and liabilities 
associated with our properties such as:

• details of properties which are subject to transfer agreements with former Local Authority landlords;
• restrictive covenants preventing or limiting disposal at market value;
• low property values in relation to the cost of housing management; and
• where we are the freeholder of a block of homes and majority owner.

The register records potential assets to be disposed of when void. Such properties are discussed in the 
‘Managing our assets’ section of the VfM Statement on page 36.

The register also includes information held in our comprehensive treasury system, such as details of our loans and  
of the bonds that we have issued. These details include maturity dates, covenant requirements and repayment 
profiles.	It	also	holds	details	of	other	liabilities	such	as	pension	deficits	as	well	as	of	joint	venture	arrangements,	
contract registers and s106 obligations. 

The register is subject to continuous review as it is very important that all data held is accurate. Since we have  
a	portfolio	of	over	23,000	properties	and	much	of	the	data	is	unique	and	specific	to	each	property,	the	register	
reflects	significant	investment	in	resource.	We	have	an	Assets	and	Liabilities	Steering	Group	which	identifies	and	
oversees	the	register.	Staff	across	Finance,	Development	and	Housing	Directorates	have	responsibilities	directly	
relating to the management of the assets and liabilities register.

Our People
We employ over 1,100 people and in 2015/16 we:

• recruited 266 new employees;
•  completed 2,323 corporate learning and development days at an average of 1.6 days per employee,  

a decrease from the previous year;
•  spent over £914,000 on learning and development at an average of £896 per employee, an increase  

on the previous year;
• had employee absence rates of 3.9%, slightly up from 3.6% in the previous year; and 
•	 had	staff	turnover	of	18.8%,	lower	than	in	the	previous	year	(20.7%).

Capital and Treasury Management continued
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The Radian Way
The	behaviour	framework	that	all	Radian	staff	work	to	clarifies	what	is	expected	of	ourselves	and	others,	helps	us	
understand and identify development needs, assists us in assessing our performance and enables us to see how 
we	demonstrate	our	values.	The	five	behaviours	are:

1. Engage:  encourage yourself and others to take ownership of performance and development.
2. Change:	 	anticipate,	plan	and	cope	effectively	with	business	change	and	use	creative	thinking	to	

continually improve business processes, systems or services.
3. Communicate:	 	work	to	give	and	receive	information	to	help	build	rapport,	gain	confidence	and	get	

commitment.
4. Service:	 	deliver	excellent	customer	service	to	meet	the	identified	needs	of	customers	both	inside	and	

outside the organisation.
5. Team:  work with people in a co-operative manner that recognises their strengths and makes best 

use of both individual and team performance.

Learning and Development
We	use	a	variety	of	methods	to	support	the	learning	and	development	of	our	staff	including:

•  Academy – development focussing on induction, mandatory training, people management and strategic 
learning;

•  Leadership Brilliance – a selection of four leadership development programmes for all levels of leadership from 
aspiring to senior;

•	 	Radian	Mentoring	Programme	–	an	opportunity	for	staff	to	have	a	personal	mentor	who	will	provide	bespoke,	
personal, one-on-one development;

•	 	Qualifications	programme	–	support	for	professional	qualifications	and	continuous	professional	and	personal	
development based on individual and job role requirements; and

•	 Business	Specialist	Training	–	dedicated	job	specific	training	for	staff.

Our	aim	is	for	staff	to	have	the	skills,	capabilities	and	dedication	to	adapt	to	changing	needs.	We	believe	learning	
and development is vital for this, allowing us to deliver the quality of service we strive for. Our approach to learning 
and development ensures both individual and organisational objectives can be met.

Gender Analysis
Radian is committed to achieving equality of opportunity in both the homes and services we provide and in 
fulfilling	our	responsibilities	as	an	employer.	We	are	committed	to	and	encourage	a	diverse	culture	that	challenges	
prejudicial language and behaviours, breaking down barriers to opportunities. We regard promoting the principles 
of diversity and equality as core to all our corporate objectives and activities.

Group  
Combined Board

Radian Support  
Board

Independent Committee 
Members Employees

Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female

8 4 5 1 1 4 453 669

Strategic Report
continued
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Staff Engagement 
76%	of	our	staff	participated	in	the	2015	Engagement	Survey,	a	14%	increase	from	2014.	Engagement	increased	
by	2%	from	2014	and	we	donated	£4,615	to	a	charity	chosen	by	our	staff.

We saw improvements in almost all areas and highlights included:

• 84% are engaged with Radian;
• 87% are proud to work for Radian;
• 88% would recommend Radian as a good place to work;
•	 84%	are	satisfied	with	Radian;
• 88% feel committed to Radian’s goals;
• 84% intend to be working for Radian in a year’s time; and
• 84% say working for Radian makes them want to do the best work they can.

Corporate Social Responsibility Statement
Our Purpose and Vision 
We will listen hard to our customers and create great housing, care and support services to ensure that Radian  
is their positive choice for all that we provide. We will work with local partners to deliver our vision to be a place 
where	people	flourish.

Our Values 
We are committed to creating choice and opportunity for people, communities and colleagues by building  
mutual trust.

Ethical Standards
•  We have a Code of Conduct for Board and Committee members, employees and involved residents;
•  All employees work within our values-based “Radian Way” behaviour framework, raising any concerns and 

reporting any potentially improper, unethical or illegal behaviour or conduct they experience at work or in 
connection with their work activities;

•  We seek to provide clear and consistent leadership on equality and diversity; and 
•	 	We	aim	to	recruit	and	retain	the	best	people,	reflecting	the	diversity	of	our	communities;	we	support	this	aim	

with	a	comprehensive	learning	and	development	offer,	flexible	working,	safe	and	healthy	working	environments,	
a	range	of	well-being	benefits	and	an	employee	assistance	programme.

Stakeholder Relationships
Our corporate mission is to work smarter to manage, maintaining our homes and communities to a high standard 
and empowering our residents as part of our community investment activities.

In 2015/16 we achieved this through:

•	 	Developing	our	Residents	Council	to	ensure	effective	scrutiny	of	our	housing	management	performance;
•  Providing support, learning and development opportunities for our residents to empower them to make  

a	positive	difference	for	our	communities;
•  Our EST team helping 85 people into employment and 250 people into training; 
•  Supporting our residents to get ‘on-line’ with targeted advice, support and training, including our Wimax 

(community	wifi)	project	at	Longwood	Park,	Langley,	Slough;
•  Increasing the functionality of our MyRadian digital portal resulting in over 7,700 users;
•  Radian Direct maintaining our Customer Service Excellence accreditation, receiving commendation for  

the high quality of our digital service approach; 

Strategic Report
continued

Our People continued
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Strategic Report
continued

•  Securing accreditation from HouseMark for our complaints service; 
•  Securing external accreditation for the high quality of our community investment activities from the  

Tenant Participation Advisory Service;
•  Committing to initiating conversations with Health partners to help support the health and wellbeing of our 

residents; and
•	 	Ensuring	our	residents’	voice	is	heard	through	engagement	and	consultation	so	that	they	are	able	to	influence	

and scrutinise service delivery.

Suppliers and Business Partners
•  We extend our partnership philosophy to our business partners and major suppliers, working with them in an 

atmosphere of mutual trust and respect;
•  We are committed to contributing as much value as possible to our customers and communities, adopting  

a	‘commercial	head,	social	heart’	approach	to	procurement.	We	use	effective	specifications	and	positive	
contractual	relationships	to	influence	suppliers	and	partners,	support	small	and	medium	enterprises	(“SMEs”),	
promote and measure social value and deliver value for money; and

•  We expect all those contractors and businesses working with us to abide by the 2010 Equality Act,  
anti-corruption and anti-bribery legislation.

Environment
•  We build homes that meet or exceed the new statutory space standards, as well as the individual design 

requirements for each scheme agreed with the relevant local authority;
•	 	We	actively	promote	energy	efficiency	via	an	ongoing	insulation	and	heating	upgrade	programme	to	reduce	

energy consumption and improve residents’ comfort and wellbeing;
•  We have a photovoltaic (“PV”) panel installation programme to generate electricity from solar power, ensuring 

cheaper electricity for residents and contributing to reducing carbon emissions;
•	 	Our	energy	advisors	offer	advice	and	guidance	to	residents	in	fuel	poverty,	aiming	to	change	behaviours	to	

reduce energy use, fuel bills and environmental impact; and 
•  We aim to consume fewer resources, exchanging disposable resources for reusable ones and recycling where 

possible through initiatives including recycling facilities, renewable energy usage, transport initiatives, waste 
recycling and centralised procurement practices.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 14 September 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Carol Bode 
Chair

Corporate Social Responsibility Statement continued
Stakeholder Relationships continued
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Value for Money
Value for Money – An integral Part of Our Business
We	aim	to	provide	quality	services	that	represent	VfM.	In	order	to	fulfil	our	regulatory	obligations	every	September	
we publish our VfM statement on our website. This document provides full details of our performance, cost, return 
on assets, VfM delivered to date and our future plans. Our website’s VfM section also contains our VfM strategy 
2016-20 which is a vital delivery component of our Vision 2025 commitments.

Radian faces unprecedented revenue challenges. In setting our 2016-20 VfM strategy in March 2016, our Group 
Combined Board has set stringent VfM and zero based budget review objectives. By March 2020 (against our 
June	2015	Business	Plan	as	the	baseline)	we	will	deliver	£9m	of	financial	over-performance	that	will	directly	impact	
our surpluses against our forecast. Each department will contribute by reducing overheads and service costs and 
by	creating	efficiencies	through	greater	collaboration	and	innovative	ways	of	working.	

Our performance in these areas is closely scrutinised by Moody’s, the credit rating agency, and our regulator,  
the HCA.

Our Performance 
A	cumulative	VfM	dividend	of	£7.1m	was	achieved	during	2013-16	against	our	minimum	efficiency	target	of	£5.5m.	
Total VfM savings for the year ended 31 March 2016 were £2.6m (2015: £3.0m). 

The	full	record	of	efficiency	saving	outcomes	we	have	secured	can	be	found	on	our	website.	

Performance challenges include: 

•  Continuing our preparations for accelerating welfare reform (the roll out of Universal Credit and the proposed 
Local Housing Allowance cap) together with greater service expectations; and 

•	 Maintaining	our	strong	levels	of	staff	engagement	and	performance	whilst	reducing	management	costs.	

We continue to compare the cost and quality of our services through HouseMark (www.housemark.co.uk)  
against a peer group of 26 organisations with over 7,500 homes in Outer London, the South East and South West. 
Outcomes are recorded within our VfM statement which can be found our website. Our 2015/16 performance will 
be included once published by HouseMark towards the end of 2016. 

New Homes
We	build	new	homes	to	meet	local	need,	offering	a	range	of	tenure	choice	and	building	homes	for	affordable	
rent,	market	rent,	shared	ownership	and	market	sale.	As	well	as	appraising	for	financial	viability,	we	appraise	
development schemes for suitability for our client markets, long term maintenance costs and social value. The 
affordability	and	impact	of	all	our	developments	are	scrutinised	for	approval	by	EAP	and	NBC	(according	to	
respective delegations). 

In 2015/16 we completed 229 new homes towards our ambitious 2015-18 ‘Smarter’ corporate plan. These new 
homes were delivered in spite of rising build costs: a rise of over 5.5% in the last 12 months.

The objective of our Development Strategy 2016-21 is delivery of 600 new homes per year throughout that 
period. This will be a mixed tenure programme including increased numbers of shared ownership properties, 
supported by a range of other products. We will utilise income from sales, grant funding and our retained revenue 
resources, combined with a strategy to reduce build costs. We have established a target saving of 5% for the next 
year,	benchmarked	against	industry	standard	indices	and	build	cost	inflation.	We	will	achieve	this	saving	through	
innovative partnership working and developing more schemes on land that we have acquired ourselves. This 
includes growing Radian Build, which is our in-house construction service, to deliver 150 homes per annum by 
2021.

Analysis of outturn project costs against appraised project costs for schemes during 2015/16 demonstrated total 
VfM savings of approximately £996k against the originally approved notional subsidy. Such savings increase 
capacity within the business plan for future developments. 
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Value for Money
continued

Managing Our Assets
In general, there is high demand for our assets which are in good condition and perform well both in terms of 
their	financial	return	and	their	social	benefit.	Our	relatively	compact	geographical	spread	balances	the	efficiency	
benefits	of	concentration	with	the	risks	of	over	concentration.	We	focus	on	consolidating	stock	through	
development to meet demand in our existing geographical areas. 

We have a programme of asset management where we consider our stock, identifying which properties are 
unconstrained by planning conditions, stock transfer covenants or other restrictions. This has shown how our 
contribution from low performing assets might be improved through change of use or tenure or disposal when  
the properties next become empty. 

Properties that are more expensive to manage than the norm are targeted in our review. These include older, 
non-standard properties which either have underlying problems with regards to repairs such as recurring damp 
and	properties	which	are	expensive	to	heat	and	difficult	to	insulate.	Other	such	properties	identified	in	our	review	
are properties outside our core geographical area and legacy properties where a particular service is no longer 
required	(for	example	staff	accommodation	or	services	no	longer	supported	by	Local	Authorities).	In	total	our	
review this year has considered 663 properties.

Measuring Our Return on Assets 
We	measure	our	return	on	assets	in	three	different	ways.	

1 – The financial return on our own interest in homes (after grant has been deducted)
This	return	(shown	below)	has	averaged	at	5.2%	over	the	last	three	years.	This	reflects	a	mix	of	higher	return	 
from our older homes, and the lower returns for the homes that we have acquired more recently. 

2 – The financial return (after interest) on our own investment in homes, after deducting grant and loans
The second measure takes into account that a large proportion of our investment has been borrowed from 
lenders. Our investment is the reserves that we have accumulated over the years by retaining our surpluses  
within the business.

As interest rates rise and our borrowing costs increase, this return will fall.

3 – The financial return on the combined interest in homes by ourselves and our grant providing stakeholders
This	return	includes	the	benefit	to	the	community	of	sub	market	rents	facilitated	by	the	grant	that	we	received.	 
We	estimate	the	discount	(on	market	rents)	to	be	between	20%	for	homes	let	at	affordable	rent	and	35%	for	
homes let at social rents.

Measure 3-year average 2016 2015 2014
1 –  Return on Radian’s investment 5.2% 5.7% 5.3% 4.7%
2 – Return on Radian’s investment net of debt 6.1% 7.4% 5.8% 4.7%
3 – Return on combined investment of Radian and government 7.8% 8.2% 7.8% 7.3%

Return on Investment by Tenure
The following table shows how returns (using measure 1) vary between tenures, which helps us make decisions 
about future investment in housing.

Higher	returns	on	general	needs	and	leasehold	properties,	affordable	rent,	housing	for	older	people	and	care	
homes	reflects	the	high	proportion	acquired	by	transfer	from	local	authorities,	at	the	relatively	low	capital	cost	 
and high grant rates received.
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Value for Money
continued

2015/16
Number  

of properties

Social housing 
operating surplus 

£'000

Return on Radian's 
investment in homes 

(Measure 1)
General	needs	and	leasehold	properties,	affordable	rent,	 
 housing for older people and care homes 17,293 35,666 6.2%
Low cost ownership 1,664 950 1.3%
Other social housing 1,146 4,955 5.3%
Total 20,103 41,571 5.7%

Return on Investment by Landlord 
The	following	table	shows	how	returns	(using	measure	1)	vary	between	individual	entities	with	different	core	
geographical	area	concentration.	The	difference	between	the	Group	social	housing	operating	surplus	and	the	 
total social housing operating surplus of the individual entities is due to consolidation adjustments.

2015/16
Number  

of properties

Social housing 
operating surplus 

£'000

Return on Radian's 
investment in homes 

(Measure 1)
The Swaythling Housing Society Limited 7,585 14,096 4.4%
Windsor & District Housing Association Limited 4,417 9,301 7.9%
Portal Housing Association Limited 2,510 6,180 2.3%
Drum Housing Association Limited 5,591 10,866 5.7%

Return on Investment by Tenure continued
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The	Board	is	responsible	for	preparing	the	report	and	the	financial	statements	in	accordance	with	applicable	law	
and Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland” (“FRS 102”).

Company	and	Registered	Provider	legislation	in	the	United	Kingdom	requires	the	Board	to	prepare	financial	
statements	for	each	reporting	period	which	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Group	and	
Company	at	the	end	of	the	year	and	of	the	surplus	or	deficit	of	the	Group	and	Company	for	the	year	then	ended.

In	preparing	these	financial	statements	the	Board	is	required	to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
•  follow applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and the Housing SORP 2014 subject to any material 

departures	disclosed	and	explained	in	the	financial	statements;	and
•	 	prepare	the	financial	statements	on	a	going	concern	basis	unless	it	is	inappropriate	to	presume	that	 

the Group and Company will continue in business.

The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the	financial	position	of	the	Group	and	Company	and	enable	it	to	ensure	that	the	financial	statements	comply	with	
the Housing SORP 2014, the Accounting Direction for Social Housing in England from April 2015, the Co-operative 
and	Community	Benefit	Societies	Act	2014	and	the	Housing	and	Regeneration	Act	2008.	It	is	also	responsible	for	
safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Report of the Board is prepared in accordance with the Housing SORP 
2014.

The	Board	is	responsible	for	the	maintenance	and	integrity	of	the	corporate	and	financial	information	on	the	Group’s	
website.	Legislation	in	the	United	Kingdom	governing	the	preparation	and	dissemination	of	the	financial	statements	
and	other	information	included	in	the	annual	reports	may	differ	from	legislation	in	other	jurisdictions.

Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Radian Group Limited

We	have	audited	the	financial	statements	of	Radian	Group	Limited	for	the	year	ended	31	March	2016	which	
comprise the Group and Parent Company Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent Company 
Statement of Financial Positions, the Group and Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group 
Statement	of	Cash	Flows	and	related	notes	and	notes	1	to	28	to	the	financial	statements.	The	financial	reporting	
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members 
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the 
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities, the Board of Management is responsible 
for	the	preparation	of	the	financial	statements	and	for	being	satisfied	that	they	give	a	true	and	fair	view.	Our	
responsibility	is	to	audit	and	express	an	opinion	on	the	financial	statements	in	accordance	with	applicable	law	
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements 
An	audit	involves	obtaining	evidence	about	the	amounts	and	disclosures	in	the	financial	statements	sufficient	to	
give	reasonable	assurance	that	the	financial	statements	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	caused	by	
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s 
and the Parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 
reasonableness	of	significant	accounting	estimates	made	by	the	Directors;	and	the	overall	presentation	of	the	
financial	statements.	In	addition,	we	read	all	the	financial	and	non-financial	information	in	the	annual	report	to	
identify	material	inconsistencies	with	the	audited	financial	statements	and	to	identify	any	information	that	is	
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the 
course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies  
we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on Financial Statements
In	our	opinion	the	financial	statements:

•	 	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	the	Group’s	and	the	Parent	Company’s	affairs	as	at	31	March	2016	
and of the Group’s income and expenditure and Parent Company’s income and expenditure for the year then 
ended;

•  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; 
and

•  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Accounting Direction 
for	Social	Housing	in	England	from	April	2015,	the	Co-operative	and	Community	Benefit	Societies	Act	2015	and	
the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008.

Opinion on Other Matters Prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In	our	opinion	the	information	given	in	the	Strategic	Report	and	the	Board	Report	for	the	financial	year	for	which	
the	financial	statements	are	prepared	is	consistent	with	the	financial	statements.



40   Radian Group Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2016

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Radian Group Limited continued

Matters on Which We are Required to Report by Exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us  
to report to you if, in our opinion:

•  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit 
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

•	 	the	Parent	Company	financial	statements	are	not	in	agreement	with	the	accounting	records	and	returns;	or
•	 certain	disclosures	of	Directors’	remuneration	specified	by	law	are	not	made;	or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

James Wright (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
Crawley, United Kingdom
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Group Statement of  
Comprehensive Income  
Year ended 31 March 2016 

2016 2015

Note

Continuing
operations

£’000

Discontinued
operations

£’000
Total

£’000

Continuing
operations

£’000

Discontinued
operations

£’000
Total

£’000

Turnover 3 129,308 13,852 143,160 124,589 16,553 141,142
Cost of sales 3 (4,586) – (4,586) (5,480) – (5,480)
Operating costs 3 (81,118) (14,390) (95,508) (82,309) (15,930) (98,239)
Operating Surplus/ 
 (Deficit) 3 43,604 (538) 43,066 36,800 623 37,423
Surplus from sale of housing  
 properties 3 1,971 – 1,971 2,626 – 2,626
Finance income 4 1,862 – 1,862 3,333 – 3,333
Finance costs 5 (25,670) – (25,670) (31,390) – (31,390)
Net	other	finance	(costs)/ 
 income 5 (882) (46) (928) (869) (89) (958)
Fair value movement on  
 financial	instruments 24 (46) – (46) 262 – 262
Fair value movement on  
 investment properties 1,047 – 1,047 946 – 946
Share of surplus in joint  
 ventures 263 – 263 270 – 270
Surplus/(Deficit) on  
  Ordinary Activities 

Before Taxation 6 22,149 (584) 21,565 11,978 534 12,512
Tax charge on surplus on  
 ordinary activities 7 803 – 803 (72) – (72)
Surplus/(Deficit) on  
  Ordinary Activities for 

the Year 22,952 (584) 22,368 11,906 534 12,440
Other Comprehensive  
 Income
Remeasurement gains/(losses)  
 on	defined	benefit	pensions 20 8,953 331 9,284 (7,444) (514) (7,958)
Transfer from restricted reserve 290 – 290 – – –
Total Comprehensive  
 Income/(Expense) 32,195 (253) 31,942 4,462 20 4,482

The notes on pages 49 to 84	form	part	of	these	financial	statements.
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Company Statement of  
Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 March 2016 

Note
2016

£’000
2015
£’000

Turnover 896 848
Operating (costs)/income (896) 43
Operating Surplus – 891
Finance income 4 3,259 3,413
Finance costs 5 (3,259) (3,413)
Net	other	finance	costs 5 (34) (61)
(Deficit)/Surplus on Ordinary Activities Before Taxation (34) 830
Tax charge on surplus on ordinary activities – –
(Deficit)/Surplus on Ordinary Activities for the Year (34) 830
Other Comprehensive Income 
Remeasurement	gains/(losses)	on	defined	benefit	pensions 562 (431)
Total Comprehensive Income 528 399

All activities derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 49 to 84	form	part	of	these	financial	statements.
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Note
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Fixed Assets
Housing properties 10 1,137,399 1,107,097
HomeBuy loan 12 9,910 10,871
Other	fixed	assets 10 40,670 36,206
Investments in joint ventures 12 2,285 2,375
Total	non-housing	property	fixed	assets 52,865 49,452
Total	fixed	assets 1,190,264 1,156,549

Current Assets
Properties for sale 13 5,319 5,802
Inventories 14 304 295
Receivables 15 9,242 19,205
Short term investments 16 7,804 14,004
Cash 16 51,783 55,769

74,452 95,075
Payables: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year 17 (52,776) (45,233)
Net Current Assets 21,676 49,842
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 1,211,940 1,206,391

Pension Liability 20 23,113 31,260
Payables: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year 18 1,025,825 1,043,014
Provisions For Liabilities 21 632 1,399

1,049,570 1,075,673
Equity
Restricted reserve 287 577
Revenue reserve 162,083 130,141
Group Funds 162,370 130,718

1,211,940 1,206,391

The notes on pages 49 to 84	form	part	of	these	financial	statements.

The	financial	statements	of	Radian	Group	Limited,	registration	number	03482228,	on	pages	41 to 84 were 
approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 14 September 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Carol Bode Malcolm Rule
Chair Secretary

Group Statement of Financial Position
31 March 2016 
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Note
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Fixed Assets
Investments in subsidiary 11 50 50

50 50

Current Assets
Receivables
 Due within one year 15 742 360
 Due after more than one year 15 106,788 110,324
Cash 16 3,919 2,483

111,449 113,167
Payables: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year 17 (10,094) (8,967)
Net Current Assets 101,355 104,200
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 101,405 104,250

Pension Liability 633 1,086
Payables: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year 18 103,892 106,812
Equity
Revenue	deficit (3,120) (3,648)
Company Deficit (3,120) (3,648)

101,405 104,250

The notes on pages 49 to 84	form	part	of	these	financial	statements.

The	financial	statements	of	Radian	Group	Limited,	registration	number	03482228,	on	pages	41	to	84	were	
approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 14 September 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Carol Bode Malcolm Rule
Chair Secretary

Company Statement of Financial Position
31 March 2016 
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Revenue
 reserve

£’000

Restricted
 reserve*

£’000
Total
£’000

At 1 April 2014 125,659 577 126,236
Surplus on ordinary activities 12,440 – 12,440
Remeasurement losses on pension scheme (7,958) – (7,958)

At 31 March 2015 130,141 577 130,718
Surplus on ordinary activities 22,368 – 22,368
Remeasurement gains on pension scheme 9,284 – 9,284
Transfer of restricted expenditure to unrestricted reserve 290 (290) –

At 31 March 2016 162,083 287 162,370

The notes on pages 49 to 84	form	part	of	these	financial	statements.

*Restricted	reserves	represent	funding	set	aside	for	specified	projects	where	additional	approval	from	outside	the	Group	is	required.	 
The	reserve	is	utilised	when	suitable	works	are	identified	and	approval	is	obtained.

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
31 March 2016 
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Revenue
reserve

£’000

At 1 April 2014 (4,047)
Surplus on ordinary activities 830
Remeasurement losses on pension scheme (431)

At 31 March 2015 (3,648)
Deficit	on	ordinary	activities (34)
Remeasurement gains on pension scheme 562

At 31 March 2016 (3,120)

The notes on pages 49 to 84	form	part	of	these	financial	statements.

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
31 March 2016 
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2016 2015
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 1 61,742 62,810
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase	of	tangible	fixed	assets (4,736) (536)
Payments to acquire and develop housing properties (57,384) (54,326)
Sales of housing properties 11,658 9,276
Sale	of	other	fixed	assets 271 41
HomeBuy loans redemptions 3,244 7,116
Social Housing Grant received 7,542 3,312
Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (39,405) (35,117)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Finance costs (25,463) (31,034)
Proceeds from sale of gilt previously held as a short  
 term investment 6,175 24,386
Loan repayments (6,270) (4,478)
Cash	inflow	from	financing	including	premiums	 
 on issue (765) 6,002
Cash outflow from financing activities (26,323) (5,124)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (3,986) 22,569
Opening cash as at 1 April 2015 55,769 33,200
Closing cash as at 31 March 2016 51,783 55,769

Group Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 March 2016 



  continued
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Notes to the Group Statement  
of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 March 2016

1. Reconciliation of Operating Surplus to Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

2016 2015
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Operating surplus 43,066 37,423
Depreciation	of	fixed	assets 16,998 17,528
Amortisation of grant (4,092) (4,297)
Impairment of housing properties 1,447 785
Movement in joint venture 263 (37)
Pension scheme cost 3,286 2,200
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 474 (1,342)
Decrease in receivables and prepayments 6,121 9,093
(Decrease)/increase in payables and accruals (3,166) 2,432
Finance income 390 1,939
Taxation received/(paid) 36 (31)
Employer pension contribution (3,081) (2,883)

18,676 25,387
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 61,742 62,810

2. Analysis of Changes in Net Debt

At
 1 April

2015
£’000

Cash
flow

£’000

Other
 non cash

changes
£’000

At
 31 March

2016
 £’000

Cash at bank and in hand 55,769 (3,986) – 51,783
Short term investments 14,004 (6,175) 46 7,875
Housing loans repayable within one year (6,270) 6,270 (16,312) (16,312)
Housing loans repayable in more than one year (515,688) – 16,312 (499,376)
Bonds repayable in more than one year (108,000) (500) – (108,500)
Net Debt (560,185) (4,533) 46  (564,530)

3. Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Debt

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (3,986) 22,569
Cash	outflow/(inflow)	from	debt	and	lease	financing 5,770 (3,522)
Cash	outflow	from	liquid	resources (6,175) (24,386)
Movement in net debt in the year (4,391) (5,339)
Non cash change in liquid resources 46 261
Net Debt at the Beginning of Year (560,185) (555,107)
Net Debt at the End of Year (564,530) (560,185)
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1. Legal Status
Radian Group Limited is a company limited by guarantee and is registered with the HCA as a Registered Provider.

2. Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in the current and in the prior year. 

Basis of Preparation
The	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	applicable	United	Kingdom	accounting	
standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland’ (“FRS 102”) and in accordance with the Housing SORP 2014, the Accounting 
Direction	for	Social	Housing	in	England	from	April	2015,	the	Co-operative	and	Community	Benefit	Societies	Act	
2014	and	the	Housing	and	Regeneration	Act	2008.	The	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	on	the	historical	
cost	basis	except	for	a	modification	to	a	fair	value	basis	for	certain	financial	instruments	and	investment	properties	
as	specified	in	the	accounting	policies	below.

This	is	the	first	year	in	which	the	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	under	FRS	102.	An	explanation	outlining	
the impact of the transition can be found in note 28.

Going Concern
The	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	on	a	going	concern	basis,	details	of	which	can	be	found	in	the	
Board Report on page 14.

Basis of Consolidation
The	Group	financial	statements	consolidate	the	financial	statements	of	the	Parent	Company	and	all	of	its	
subsidiaries	at	31	March.	Intragroup	balances,	surpluses	and	deficits	are	eliminated	on	consolidation.	

Radian Group Limited is the ultimate parent and has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 102, 
Section 33 not to disclose transactions or balances with entities which form part of the Group and which are 
also Registered Providers. This is the case except for intragroup transactions with the following subsidiaries and 
joint venture which are not Registered Providers regulated by the Regulation Committee of the HCA: Radian 
Support	Limited,	Radian	Capital	plc	and	Affinity	(Reading)	Limited.	The	Accounting	Direction	for	Social	Housing	in	
England 2015 requires Registered Providers to disclose transactions between regulated and non-regulated Group 
members. This requirement includes the disclosure of the basis of recharges and apportionment of revenues, 
costs, assets and liabilities.

Disclosure Exemptions
Under FRS 102 paragraph 1.12(b), the Company is exempt from the requirement to prepare a Statement of Cash 
Flows	on	the	grounds	that	the	consolidated	Group	cash	flow	includes	the	Company	cash	flows.

The Company is exempt from presenting a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning 
and end of the period.

Joint Arrangements
Windsor & District Housing Association (“Windsor”) has invested in a PFI project to refurbish, manage and 
maintain an estate for Reading Borough Council with Southern Housing Group, another Registered Provider. 
Windsor	has	a	50%	investment	in	share	capital	and	redeemable	loan	notes	in	the	joint	venture,	Affinity	(Reading)	
Holdings	Limited	which	in	turn	holds	100%	of	the	share	capital	of	Affinity	(Reading)	Limited	which	operates	the	PFI	
contract.	This	is	a	joint	venture	that	is	included	in	the	Group	financial	statements	by	proportionately	consolidating	
the	Group’s	share	of	assets,	liabilities,	profits	and	losses,	using	the	gross	equity	method	of	accounting.

Windsor is also in partnership with Southern Housing Group to deliver housing and community development 
services	for	the	estate	under	the	PFI	contract	and	has	accounted	for	its	50%	share	in	Affinity	Housing	Services	
as a “joint arrangement that is not an entity” according to FRS 102. The Group recognised its share of assets and 
liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position and has recognised its share of turnover and expenditure in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016
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Turnover
Turnover represents rental income net of losses from voids, service charge income, fee income and revenue grant 
receivable,	income	from	first	tranche	sales	and	income	from	sales	of	properties	built	for	sale.

Service Charges
Our service charges are predominantly variable. The charges will include an allowance for the surplus or  
deficit	from	previous	years,	with	the	surplus	being	returned	to	residents	by	a	reduced	charge	and	a	deficit	being	
recovered by a higher charge. Until these are returned or recovered they are held as creditors or debtors in the 
Statement of Financial Position.

Value Added Tax (“VAT”)
The Group is VAT registered, but a large proportion of its income, namely rent, is exempt for VAT purposes and 
thus gives rise to a partial exemption calculation. Expenditure is therefore shown inclusive of VAT and the input 
VAT recovered is shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Social Housing Grant (“SHG”) and Other Public Subsidy
Where	developments	have	been	financed	by	SHG,	the	grant	receivable	is	allocated	to	short	and	long	term	
creditors and amortised over the life of the grant. SHG due from the HCA or received in advance is included 
as a current asset or liability. SHG received in respect of revenue expenditure is credited to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income in the same period as the expenditure to which it relates.

SHG is subordinated to the repayment of loans by agreement with the HCA. SHG released on sale of a property 
may be repayable but is normally available to be recycled and is credited to a Recycled Capital Grant Fund or the 
Disposal Proceeds Fund and included in the Statement of Financial Position in payables.

Shared Ownership Transactions
First tranche sales are treated as turnover. Subsequent staircasing sales are treated as surplus on sales of 
housing	properties.	Deficits	on	schemes	are	recognised	as	soon	as	they	are	foreseen.

Cyclical Repairs and Maintenance
The actual costs of cyclical repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income  
as incurred.

Purchase and Sale of Property
Purchases and sales of property are accounted for at the point at which the contract becomes unavoidable;  
this is usually on exchange of contracts.

Properties for Sale
Completed properties for outright sale and properties under construction are valued at the lower of cost and 
estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and direct 
development	overheads.	Unsold	properties	are	classified	as	current	assets	in	the	Statement	of	Financial	Position.

Fixed Assets – Housing Properties
Housing properties are held at cost less depreciation. Cost includes acquisition expenditure, development costs 
and directly attributable administration costs. 

Housing properties are split between the structure and major components which require periodic replacement. 
Replacement or restoration of such major components is capitalised and depreciated over the average estimated 
useful life.

Housing properties in the course of construction are held at cost and are not depreciated. They are transferred to 
completed properties when handed over for letting or sale.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016

Shared	ownership	properties	are	split	proportionately	between	fixed	and	current	assets	based	on	the	proportion	
of	the	share	of	equity	sold	in	the	first	tranche.	The	element	of	a	property	anticipated	to	be	sold	as	a	first	tranche	
sale	is	recognised	as	a	current	asset	and	the	remainder	as	a	fixed	asset.	

Investment Properties
Investment properties are measured at fair value annually with any change recognised through income and 
expenditure. Details of the valuers and the basis of valuation adopted are included in note 10.

Intangible Assets
Our	obligation	to	deliver	new	homes	under	the	Affordable	Housing	Programme	is	not	considered	to	meet	the	
necessary criteria for recognition as a liability under FRS 102. As the associated rights to increase rents relate to 
the same agreement, these have not been recognised as an intangible asset. 

HomeBuy
HomeBuy	transactions	are	grants	received	from	the	HCA	and	passed	on	to	an	eligible	beneficiary.	The	Group	has	
the	benefit	of	a	fixed	charge	on	the	property	entitling	it	to	a	share	of	the	proceeds	on	the	sale	of	the	property	by	
the	beneficiary.

HomeBuy loans are stated at the amount advanced less provision for bad debts. SHG is receivable from the HCA 
and is utilised to reduce the cost of these loans.

Critical Judgments, Estimates and Uncertainty
Preparation	of	the	financial	statements	requires	management	to	make	significant	judgments	and	estimates.	
We have exercised professional judgment in classifying our loans as ‘basic’. Fixed rate loans on our Statement 
of	Financial	Position	could	be	repaid	early	with	the	fixes	being	broken.	This	would	involve	paying	a	premium	to	
lenders or the lenders paying a discount to us depending on the prevailing interest rate as there are two way break 
clauses	in	our	loan	agreements.	FRS	102	is	ambiguous	on	whether	these	loans	should	be	classified	as	‘basic’	
or	‘other’	(complex)	financial	instruments.	Since	we	have	no	current	intention	to	repay	any	of	these	loans	early	
by	breaking	the	fixes,	we	have	exercised	professional	judgment	in	classifying	these	loans	as	‘basic’.	This	has	a	
significant	impact	on	our	financial	instruments	as	these	loans,	which	are	held	at	amortised	cost,	would	otherwise	
be marked to market through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Fair	value	adjustments	to	these	loans	would	have	a	significant	impact	on	our	financial	statements	and	this	
classification	is	therefore	considered	by	management	to	be	critical.	Given	our	intention	and	forecasted	ability	
to	hold	all	of	these	loans	to	maturity,	we	consider	classification	of	the	loans	as	‘basic’	to	be	appropriate,	and	
recognition at amortised cost to be a fair representation of our liabilities.

Judgments have also been made in providing for the impairment of housing properties (see impairment policy 
below). The Group has investments in HomeBuy loans and has some vulnerability to foreclosure and a loss being 
incurred on the sale of properties purchased with HomeBuy loans. As a result the Group has provided for these 
investments. Management has made judgments around redemption rates, failure rate and changes in property 
prices in its provisions.

In	disclosing	future	minimum	lease	income	further	in	the	future	than	five	years	on	our	non-cancellable	tenancies,	
which are operating leases, we have assumed an average length of tenancy of 35 years.

2. Accounting Policies continued
Fixed Assets – Housing Properties continued
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2. Accounting Policies continued
Depreciation
Freehold buildings and components
Depreciation	is	provided	to	write	off	the	cost	to	estimated	residual	value	on	a	straight	line	basis	over	the	estimated	
useful economic life of assets at the following annual rates:

Structure 100 years Bathroom 30 years
Boilers 15 years Heating 30 years
Kitchens 20 years Windows 30 years
Photovoltaics 20 years Sheltered Housing 50 years

Other	fixed	assets
Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets at the following  
annual rates:

Freehold premises 2% 
Office	equipment 20% – 331/3%
Office	furniture	and	development	equipment 10% 
Motor vehicles, yard plant and machinery 25%

Leasehold property depreciation is charged on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Impairment 
At each reporting date the Group assesses whether an indicator of impairment exists. If such an indicator exists, 
assets	affected	are	subject	to	an	impairment	review	and	the	recoverable	amount	of	the	asset	or	cash	generating	
unit is estimated (the higher of value in use, fair value less costs to sell and value in use – service potential). 

An impairment loss occurs when the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. This impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as expenditure and 
disclosed as a separate line within operating expenditure where it is considered to be material.

In the current year management has exercised judgment in providing for a development where solicitors acting for 
the Group failed to register its title at the Land Registry and where the outcome of ongoing legal proceedings is 
uncertain.

Pensions
The	Group’s	pension	arrangements	comprise	four	defined	benefit	schemes,	a	defined	contribution	scheme	and	
one	multi-employer	scheme.	Lump	sum	payments	are	being	made	to	reduce	the	deficits	in	the	defined	benefit	
schemes which are closed to new members.

Where the Group can identify its share of scheme assets and liabilities in a scheme, these are included on the 
Statement of Financial Position. The cost of providing pensions is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income	over	the	periods	during	which	the	Group	benefits	from	the	employees’	services.	Pension	assets	are	
measured	using	market	values.	Defined	benefit	pension	scheme	liabilities	are	measured	using	a	projected	unit	
method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and 
currency	to	the	liability.	The	pension	scheme	surplus	(to	the	extent	that	it	is	recoverable)	or	deficit	is	recognised	 
in	full.	The	movement	in	the	scheme	surplus/deficit	is	split	between	operating	charges,	finance	items	and,	in	 
other comprehensive income, actuarial gains and losses. 

The pension charge represents the employer contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting 
period	for	the	defined	contribution	scheme,	the	multi-employer	scheme	(Growth	Plan)	and	the	National	Health	
Service scheme.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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2. Accounting Policies continued
Taxation
Current tax is recognised for the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable surplus for the current 
or past reporting periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date.

Deferred Taxation
Deferred	tax	is	recognised	in	respect	of	all	timing	differences	at	the	reporting	date,	except	as	otherwise	indicated.	
Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the 
reversal	of	deferred	tax	liabilities	or	other	future	taxable	profits.

Deferred tax relating to investment properties that are measured at fair value is recognised using the tax rates  
and allowances that apply to the sale of the asset. Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates and laws that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date that are expected to apply to the reversal of  
the	timing	difference.

Deferred tax liabilities are presented within provisions for liabilities and deferred tax assets within debtors. Deferred 
tax	assets	and	liabilities	are	offset	only	if	the	Group	has	a	legally	enforceable	right	to	set	off	current	tax	assets	
against current tax liabilities.

Financial Instruments 
Financial instruments are recognised when the Group or Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of	the	instrument	and	are	classified	according	to	their	substance.	For	the	deferred	elements	of	the	Radian	Capital	
2049 bonds, the recognition trigger is when security is in place and the funds are received by the issuer, Radian 
Capital Plc.

Financial Assets and Liabilities
All	are	initially	measured	at	transaction	price,	including	transaction	costs,	unless	those	financial	assets	are	
classified	as	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss,	which	are	initially	measured	at	fair	value,	unless	the	arrangement	
constitutes	a	financing	transaction.	This	applies	to	our	interest	rate	swap	which	is	measured	at	fair	value	through	
profit	or	loss.	If	an	arrangement	is	a	financing	transaction,	the	financial	asset	or	liability	is	measured	at	the	present	
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial	assets	are	only	derecognised	when	a)	the	contractual	rights	to	the	cash	flows	from	the	financial	asset	
expire or are settled, b) the Group transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
of	the	financial	asset	or,	c)	the	Group,	despite	having	retained	some	but	not	all	significant	risks	and	rewards	of	
ownership, has transferred control of the asset to another party.

Financial	liabilities	are	only	derecognised	when	the	obligation	specified	in	the	contract	is	discharged,	cancelled	 
or expires.

Basic	instruments	that	are	classified	as	payable	or	receivable	within	one	year	on	initial	recognition	are	measured	at	
the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or received, net of impairment.

Our	loans	and	bonds	are	classified	as	basic	under	FRS	102	with	subsequent	measurement	at	amortised	cost	
using	the	effective	interest	method.

Leases
Leases	are	classified	as	finance	leases	whenever	the	terms	of	a	lease	transfer	substantially	all	the	risks	or	rewards	
of	ownership	of	the	leased	assets	to	the	entity.	All	other	leases	are	classified	as	operating	leases.

Assets	held	under	finance	leases	are	recognised	initially	at	the	fair	value	of	the	leased	asset	(or,	if	lower,	the	
present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor 
is	included	in	the	Statement	of	Financial	Position	as	a	finance	lease	obligation.	Lease	payments	are	apportioned	
between	finance	charges	and	reduction	of	the	lease	obligation	using	the	effective	interest	method	so	as	to	achieve	
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are deducted in measuring 

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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2. Accounting Policies continued
Leases continued
the	surplus	or	deficit.	Assets	held	under	finance	leases	are	included	in	other	fixed	assets	and	depreciated	and	
assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets.

Whether the Group is the lessee or lessor, rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis  
over the lease term even if the payments are not made on such a basis. 

In	disclosing	future	minimum	lease	income	later	than	five	years	on	our	non-cancellable	tenancies	(which	are	
operating leases), we have assumed an average length of tenancy of 35 years.

3. Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus by Class of Business

2016 2015 
 
 

Turnover
£’000

 
Cost of

sales
£’000

Operating 
costs
£’000

Operating
surplus/

(deficit)
£’000

 
Turnover

£’000

 
Cost of

sales
£’000

Operating 
costs
£’000

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£’000

Social Housing Lettings 113,164 – (71,593) 41,571 108,058 – (76,394) 31,664

Other Social Housing 
 Activities
Development administration – – (2,703) (2,703) – – (1,165) (1,165)
Cesspool emptying 75 – (97) (22) 37 – (77) (40)
Management services 476 – (388) 88 409 – (381) 28
Supporting people 138 – (92) 46 141 – (84) 57
Sale of housing  
 accommodation  
 department costs – – (4,053) (4,053) 200 – (1,424) (1,224)
Help to buy agency 1,473 – (1,422) 51 1,502 – (1,273) 229
First tranche sales 7,524 (4,586) – 2,938 7,533 (5,480) – 2,053
Other non-rent bad debts – – (200) (200) – – (174) (174)
Amortisation of social  
 housing grant 4,092 – – 4,092 4,297 – – 4,297

Non-Social Housing  
 Activities – Lettings
Commercial properties 431 – (99) 332 358 – (103) 255

Other Non-Social  
 Housing Activities
Care and support schemes 13,853 – (14,331) (478) 16,856 – (16,052) 804
Market rent properties 1,934 – (530)  1,404 1,751 – (1,112) 639
Total 143,160 (4,586) (95,508) 43,066 141,142 (5,480) (98,239) 37,423
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3. Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus by Class of Business continued

General
needs

housing 
and

	affordable
rent

£’000

Supported
and

 housing 
for older 

people and 
care homes 

£’000

Low cost
home

 ownership
£’000

Other
£’000

2016
Total
£’000

2015
Total

£’000

Income Lettings
Rent	receivable	net	of	identifiable	service	charges 86,742 8,738 3,942 9,008 108,430 103,351
Service income 2,333 1,431 926 44 4,734 4,707
Turnover from Social Housing Lettings 89,075 10,169 4,868 9,052 113,164 108,058

Expenditure on Social Housing Lettings
Management services (16,507) (1,752) (1,961) (1,220) (21,440) (29,390)
Services (4,939) (649) (589) (327) (6,504) (5,847)
Routine maintenance (10,367) (1,102) – (700) (12,169) (13,293)
Planned maintenance (3,917) (432) – (279) (4,628) (2,659)
Major repairs expenditure (7,863) (764) – (511) (9,138) (7,301)
Bad debts (216) (26) (12) (20) (274) (388)
Depreciation of housing properties (12,265) (1,292) (1,352) (1,037) (15,946) (16,680)
Impairment of housing projects (1,447) – – – (1,447) (785)
Other costs (36) (4) (4) (3) (47) (51)
Operating Cost on Social Housing Lettings (57,557) (6,021) (3,918) (4,097) (71,593) (76,394)
Operating Surplus on Social Housing Lettings 31,518 4,148 950 4,955 41,571 31,664
Void Losses (601) (224) (2) (57) (884) (966)
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3. Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus by Class of Business continued

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Group Surplus from Sale of Housing Properties
Sale proceeds 5,663 6,354
Less: Cost of sales (3,692) (3,728)
Net Surplus from Sale of Housing Properties 1,971 2,626

Group Accommodation in Management

2016
Number 
of units

2015
Number
of units

Social Housing
General needs housing 12,576 12,868
Affordable	rent	housing 1,531 1,130
Supported housing and housing for older people 1,597 1,520
Low cost home ownership 1,664 1,681
Care homes 50 53
Other social housing 1,146 1,194
Leasehold accommodation 1,539 1,542
Market rent housing 256 256
Properties managed for others 644 659
Housing properties in management 21,003 20,903
Non housing properties in management 2,097 2,263
Total Properties in Management 23,100 23,166
Home loans 1,451 1,610
Total Properties Managed or Invested 24,551 24,776

4. Finance Income

Group Company

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Interest receivable from bank and building society deposits 467 1,240 3,259 3,413
Bond premium amortised 1,472 294 – –
Loan notes in joint venture* 306 334 – –
HomeBuy redemption and HomeBuy interest** (383) 1,465 – –

1,862 3,333 3,259 3,413

*	This	interest	receivable	relates	to	£1.5m	loan	notes	in	joint	venture	(note	15)	reclassified	from	investments.
* *HomeBuy interest receivable in 2016 includes a reversal of previous interest received of £3.6m.
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5. Finance Costs

Group Company

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

On Housing Loans
Repayment	wholly	or	partly	in	more	than	five	years 26,859 26,447 3,284 3,396
On recyclable Social Housing Grant 39 24 – –
Loan arrangement fees and associated costs 153 98 11 17
Bond discount amortised 229 13 – –

27,280 26,582 3,259 3,413
On Bond Debt
Repayment	wholly	or	partly	in	more	than	five	years (1,632) (142) – –
Loan arrangement fees and associated costs 6 1 – –
Capitalised issue costs amortised 16 17 – –
Bond buyback cost – 4,932 – –

(1,610) 4,808 – –
Total interest charges 25,670 31,390 3,259 3,413
Interest charged to the Statement of Comprehensive  
 Income 25,670 31,390 3,259 3,413
Other Finance Costs/(Income) 
Net interest on pension scheme liabilities (note 20) 928 958 34 61
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6. Group Surplus on Ordinary Activities Before Taxation

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Surplus/(Deficit) on Ordinary Activities before Taxation is Stated After  
 Charging/(Crediting):
Depreciation	of	fixed	assets 16,998 17,528
Amortisation of social housing grant (4,092) (4,297)
Operating lease rental:
 Temporary social housing 19 21
 Land and buildings 610 320
	 Office	equipment,	computers	and	motor	vehicles 126 196

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the:
	 Company’s	financial	statements 8 7
 Company’s subsidiaries 102 94
Total Audit Fees 110 101

Other amounts receivable by the auditor and their associates (excluding VAT) in respect of: 
Audit related assurance services 4 5
Tax advisory services 6 26
Accounting services 19 24
Total Non-Audit Fees 29 55
Total Audit and Non-Audit Fees 139 156

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016



7. Taxation continued

Radian Group Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2016   59

7. Taxation

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Current Tax
United Kingdom corporation tax at 20% (2015: 21%) – 68
Adjustment in respect of prior year (36) (28)
Total Current Tax (36) 40

Deferred Tax
Net	origination	and	reversal	of	timing	differences (173) 32
Adjustment in respect of prior year (594) –
Total Deferred Tax (767) 32

Total Tax on Results on Ordinary Activities (803) 72

The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom at 20% 
(2015:	21%).	The	differences	are	explained	as	follows:

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Total Tax Reconciliation
Surplus on Ordinary Activities Before Taxation 21,565 12,512
Taxation on surplus on ordinary activities at 20% (2015: 21%) 4,313 2,628
Effects	of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,063 1,830
Non-taxable	profits	on	Group	transfer	of	properties (7) –
Prior year adjustments (630) (28)
Movement in unrecognised deferred tax 107 148
Non-taxable charitable activities (5,372) (4,506)
Adjustment to deferred tax due to change in tax rates (277) –
Total Tax (Credit)/Charge (803) 72

In recent years the UK Government has steadily reduced the rate of UK corporation tax, with the latest rates 
substantively	enacted	in	July	2015	now	standing	at	20%	with	effect	from	1	April	2015	and	18%	with	effect	from	
1 April 2020. The closing deferred tax assets and liabilities have been calculated at 18% in accordance with the 
rates enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016
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8. Directors’ Emoluments continued8. Directors’ Emoluments

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Total Remuneration Paid to the Executive Directors of Radian Group 
 Limited was:
Emoluments	(including	pension	contributions	and	benefits	in	kind) 800 796

Total Remuneration Paid to the Non-Executive Directors of Radian Group Limited was:
Emoluments 16 12

Total Remuneration Paid to the Board of Management of Radian Group Limited 816 808

Total Directors’ Pension Contributions 76 107
Total Emoluments (excluding Pension Contributions) of the  
 Highest Paid Director 188 179

All Executive Directors of Radian Group Limited are ordinary members of the Radian Group Pension Scheme 
(“RGPS”). The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the Final Salary Scheme with a 1/60th accrual rate  
benefit	structure	of	the	RGPS	with	the	same	conditions	of	membership	as	all	other	employees	within	that	non-
contributory	benefit	structure	of	the	Scheme.	Full	details	of	scheme	funding	are	disclosed	in	note	20.	The	Chief	
Executive has no pension arrangements to which the Group contributes, other than those relating to the Scheme.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016
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9. Staff Costs

Group Company
2016

Number
2015

Number
2016

Number
2015

Number

The Average Number of Employees and Directors  
 Expressed in Full Time Equivalents During the  
 Year was:
Housing services and central services 386 367 5 5
Care	staff 307 423 – –
Wardens, caretakers and cleaners 24 20 – –
Maintenance	staff 261 273 – –
Development	and	Home	Ownership	staff 96 83 – –

1,074 1,166 5 5

Group Company
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Staff Costs (for the above Employees)
Wages and salaries 36,110 37,982 722 683
Social security costs 2,945 3,071 78 73
Pension costs 3,558 2,873 134 139

42,613 43,926 934 895

The	Group	has	the	following	number	of	full	time	equivalent	staff	with	remuneration	(including	compensation	for	
loss	of	office	and	excluding	pension	contributions)	of	£60,000	or	more,	shown	in	bands	of	£10,000.

2016
Number

2015
Number

Salary Banding
£60,000 – £69,999 10 10
£70,000 – £79,999 5 5
£80,000 – £89,999 5 6
£90,000 – £99,999 3 2
£100,000 – £109,999 2 1
£110,000 – £119,999 1 2
£120,000 – £129,999 2 2
£130,000 – £139,999 2 2
£140,000 – £149,999 1 1
£150,000 – £159,999 – –
£160,000 – £169,999 1 –
£170,000 – £179,999 – 1
£180,000 – £189,999 1 –

33 32

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016
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10. Tangible Fixed Assets

Housing
properties

held for
letting
£’000

Shared
ownership
properties

£’000

Other
properties

£’000

Total
completed

housing
properties

£’000

Housing
properties 

held for letting
in course of

construction
£’000

Low cost
 ownership
 properties

 in course of
 construction

£’000

Other
properties

in course of
construction

£’000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2015 966,298 95,412 181,578 1,243,288 16,575 3,100 2,344
Opening balance  
 adjustment 150,614 2,699 (181,578) (28,265) 2,435 – (1,424)
At 1 April 2015 as restated 1,116,912 98,111 – 1,215,023 19,010 3,100 920
Additions 3,232 13 – 3,245 47,943 – –
Additions works to  
 existing properties 8,253 – – 8,253 – – –
Intragroup transfers – – – – – – –
Transferred into  
 management 21,635 8,032 – 29,667 (21,635) (8,032) (3,488)
Impairment loss – – – – – – –
Disposals and demolitions (6,586) (3,419) – (10,005) – – –
Transfers across tenures – – – – (15,170) 12,062 3,108
Net movement to  
 current assets (497) (2,045) – (2,542) – (1,490) –
Revaluation surplus – – – – – – –
At 31 March 2016 1,142,949 100,692 – 1,243,641 30,148 5,640 540

Social Housing Grant
At 1 April 2015 (334,990) (30,912) (68,040) (433,942) (2,301) 2 –
Opening balance  
 adjustment 334,990 30,912 68,040 433,942 2,301 (2) –
Restated at 1 April 2015 – – – – – – –
Received in year – – – – – – –
Transferred across  
 tenures – – – – – – –
Transferred into  
 management – – – – – – –
Transferred to recycled 
 capital fund – – – – –

–
–

At 31 March 2016 – – – – – – –

Other Public Subsidy
At 1 April 2015 (9,858) (248) (369) (10,475) 1 – –
Opening balance  
 adjustment 9,858 248 369 10,475 (1) – –
Restated at 1 April 2015 – – – – – – –
Additions/intragroup  
 transfers – – – – – – –
Transfers across tenures – – – – – – –
At 31 March 2016 – – – – – – –
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10. Tangible Fixed Assets continued

Total
 housing

properties
in course of

construction
£’000

Housing
sub total

 £’000

Freehold
office

premises
£’000

Leasehold
office

premises
£’000

Investment
properties

£’000

Computers,
fixture	and

fittings
£’000

Plant,
equipment 

and 
vehicles

£’000

Other
sub total

£’000
Total
£’000

22,019 1,265,307 4,975 8,966 – 7,932 3,716 25,589 1,290,896

1,011 (27,254) – 1,600 21,775 – – 23,375 (3,879)
23,030 1,238,053 4,975 10,566 21,775 7,932 3,716 48,964 1,287,017
47,943 51,188 22 – 34 367 829 1,252 52,440

– 8,253 – – – – – – 8,253
– – – – – – – – –

(33,155) (3,488) – – 3,488 – – 3,488 –
– – – – – – – – –
– (10,005) – – – (2,371) (328) (2,699) (12,704)
– – – – – – – – –

(1,490) (4,032) – – – – – – (4,032)
– – – – 1,047 – – 1,047 1,047

36,328 1,279,969 4,997 10,566 26,344 5,928 4,217 52,052 1,332,021

(2,299) (436,241) – – – – – – (436,241)

2,299 436,241 – – – – – – 436,241
– – – – – – – – –
– – – – – – – – –

– – – – – – – – –

– – – – – – – – –

– – – – – – – – –
– – – – – – – – –

1 (10,474) – – – (2) – (2) (10,476)

(1) 10,474 – – – 2 – 2 10,476
– – – – – – – – –

– – – – – – – – –
– – – – – – – – –
– – – – – – – – –

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016



64   Radian Group Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2016

10. Tangible Fixed Assets continued

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016

Housing
properties

held for
letting
£’000

Shared
ownership
properties

£’000

Other
properties

£’000

Total
completed

housing
properties

£’000

Housing
properties 

held for letting
in course of

construction
£’000

Low cost
 ownership
 properties

 in course of
 construction

£’000

Other
properties

in course of
construction

£’000

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2015 (94,376) (2,390) (6,727) (103,493) – – –
Opening balance  
 adjustment (32,268) (1,922) 6,727 (27,463) – – –
Restated at 1 April 2015 (126,644) (4,312) – (130,956) – – –
Charge for the year (15,321) (625) – (15,946) – – –
Disposals 4,187 144 – 4,331 – – –
Transferred across  
 tenures 1 – – 1 – – –
At 31 March 2016 (137,777) (4,793) – (142,570) – – –

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2016 1,005,172 95,899 – 1,101,071 30,148 5,640 540
At 31 March 2015 527,074 61,862 106,442 695,378 14,275 3,102 2,344
Restated at 31 March  
 2015 990,268 93,799 – 1,084,067 19,010 3,100 920
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10. Tangible Fixed Assets continued

Total
 housing

properties
in course of

construction
£’000

Housing
sub total

 £’000

Freehold
office

premises
£’000

Leasehold
office

premises
£’000

Investment
properties

£’000

Computers,
fixture	and

fittings
£’000

Plant,
equipment 

and 
vehicles

£’000

Other
sub total

£’000
Total
£’000

– (103,493) (1,137) (1,596) – (7,124) (2,747) (12,604) (116,097)

– (27,463) – (154) – – – (154) (27,617)
– (130,956) (1,137) (1,750) – (7,124) (2,747) (12,758) (143,714)
– (15,946) (120) (77) – (279) (576) (1,052) (16,998)
– 4,331 – – – 2,117 311 2,428 6,759

– 1 – – – – – – 1
– (142,570) (1,257) (1,827) – (5,286) (3,012) (11,382) (153,952)

36,328 1,137,399 3,740 8,739 26,344 642 1,205 40,670 1,178,069
19,721 715,099 3,838 7,370 – 806 969 12,983 728,082

23,030 1,107,097 3,838 8,816 21,844 808 900 36,206 1,143,303

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016
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10. Tangible Fixed Assets continued

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016

There were no revenue grants receivable at the Statement of Financial Position date.

All housing land and buildings are shown at historic cost and not at valuation. The value of housing inventory as 
determined by the “Existing Use Valuation – Social Housing” method at 31 March 2016 for accounting purposes 
was £1,201.0m (2015: £1,289.7m) and the value of non social housing properties as determined by the “Market 
Value” method at 31 March 2016 was £26.0m (2015: £24.0m). The valuation was carried out by Jones Lang 
LaSalle (RICS), 30 Warwick Street, London, W1B 5NH. The changes are due to changes in property values  
and the sale and acquisition or development of homes in the year. 

As set out in note 3, property rental income earned during the year was £113.2m (2015: £109.8m). No contingent 
rents have been recognised as income in the current or prior year. The contracted future minimum lease payments 
with the tenants are disclosed in note 23.

If the investment properties had not been revalued they would have been included at the following amounts:

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Cost 23,823 20,305
Depreciation (1,682) (1,464)
Net Book Value 22,141 18,841

Expenditure on works to existing properties (excluding investment properties):

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Amounts capitalised 8,256 6,788
Amount charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income 8,206 7,301

Public subsidy is represented by ‘free’ land which has been made available by a number of local authorities 
working in partnership with the Group and grants or contributions made to projects.
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11. Fixed Asset Investments
In 2011/12, the Company subscribed for the whole of the share capital of Radian Capital Plc, a subsidiary set up 
to raise funds through the bond markets to extend to other members of the Radian Group. The Company holds 
50,000 £1 shares of which £12,500 was paid.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries and interests are provided in note 22.

12. Long Term Investments
HomeBuy loans have been shown at cost less grant funding received.

We are a co–investor in Aspect Building Communities Ltd (“Aspect”) with a Registered Provider and two Local 
Authorities. Aspect was formed to bring forward housing developments to increase housing supply and boost the 
local economy by working in partnership with local organisations. We have a 26% interest in Aspect, a company 
limited by guarantee.

Investment in Affinity (Reading) Holdings Ltd
The Group, through its subsidiary Windsor & District Housing Association Limited has a joint venture investment  
in	499	shares	(2015:	499	shares)	in	Affinity	(Reading)	Holdings	Ltd:

Equity holding: Ordinary
Country of registration: England
Proportion held: 50%
Principal	activity:	 	Holds	100%	of	the	share	capital	of	Affinity	(Reading)	Limited	which	is	 

the operator of a PFI contract to supply refurbishment, management and 
maintenance of part of Reading Borough Council’s housing stock.

The Group, again through its subsidiary Windsor & District Housing Association Limited, is also in partnership with 
Southern Housing Group to deliver housing and community development services for the estate under the PFI 
contract	and	has	accounted	for	its	50%	share	in	Affinity	Housing	Services	(“AHS”)	as	a	“jointly	controlled	entity”	
according to FRS 102.

Affinity	
(Reading) 
Holding 

£’000

Affinity
Housing
Services 

£’000
Investments 

£’000

Cost
At 1 April 2015 2,057 318 2,375
Movement in year 144 (234) (90)
At 31 March 2016 2,201 84 2,285

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Other Fixed Asset Investments – –

The Swaythling Housing Society’s investment in shares in Parity Trust, a socially responsible community 
development	finance	institution	was	not	considered	to	be	recoverable	and	was	impaired	in	2014/15.
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13. Properties for Sale

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Outright sales 67 137

Shared Ownership Schemes
Properties under construction 3,752 2,192
Completed properties 1,500 3,473

5,319 5,802

14. Inventories

Group Company
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Inventories 304 295 – –

During the year inventories to the value of £2.1m (2015: £2.1m) were expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. Provision made against the inventories was £0.1m (2015: £0.2m).

15. Receivables

Group Company
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Gross arrears of rent and service charges 3,871 4,314 – –
Bad debt provision (1,751) (1,732) – –
Net Tenant Arrears 2,120 2,582 – –
Social Housing Grant receivable 45 5,359 – –
Corporation tax – 89  –  –
Non–liquid assets 2,741 4,189 – –
Staff	car	loans 167 192 5 –
Trade receivables 386 1,441 190 189
Other receivables and prepayments 2,281 3,836 547 171
Amounts Due Within One Year 7,740 17,688 742 360

Loan notes due from joint venture 1,502 1,517 – –
Loans due from subsidiary* – – 106,788 110,324
Amounts Due After One Year 1,502 1,517 106,788 110,324

Total Receivables 9,242 19,205 107,530 110,684
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15. Receivables continued
Non-liquid assets are assets held as loan security and include the following investment in gilts:

Nominal 
value (£)

Fair 
value (£)

Interest
rate

Expiry
date

UK Government Gilt Holding 723,000 986,606 8.00% 2021

* Under the Group funding arrangement, loans made to subsidiary companies are repayable over 30 years.

16. Cash and Short Term Investments

Group Company
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Short term investments 7,804 14,004 – –
Cash 51,783 55,769 3,919 2,483

59,587 69,773 3,919 2,483

There	is	a	right	of	offset	between	the	bank	overdraft	and	any	cash	held	at	bank.

Short term investments comprise deposits held on account and investments in the following gilts:

Nominal 
value (£)

Fair 
value (£)

Interest
rate

Expiry
date

UK Government Gilt Holding 599,966 881,605 4.75% 2038
UK Government Gilt Holding 296,200 404,302 8.00% 2021

17. Payables: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year

Group Company
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Housing loans (note 18) 16,312 6,270 2,931 3,536
Amounts due to contractors 17 8 – –
Trade payables 6,256 8,929 151 394
Rent and service charges received in advance 4,474 3,574 – –
Social Housing Grant received in advance 53 53 – –
Amounts due to subsidiaries – – 6,932 4,510
Other taxation and social security payable 705 859 – –
Other payables and accruals 14,416 15,810 80 527
Interest due and payable 4,035 3,807 – –
Right	to	Buy	profit	share	agreement 2,819 2,598 – –
Social housing grant and other public subsidy 3,622 3,258 – –
Finance lease creditor 67 67 – –

52,776 45,233 10,094 8,967

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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18. Payables: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year continued
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18. Payables: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year

Group Company
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Bond debt 108,500 108,000 – –
Housing loans falling due after more than one year 499,301 515,688 103,894 106,825
Recycled Capital Grant Fund and Disposal Proceeds Fund  
 (note 19) 13,384 11,062 – –
Deferred income 195 262 – –
Unamortised fees and net premiums 3,398 4,667 (2) (13)
Social housing grant 389,103 393,145 – –
Other public subsidy 10,278 8,464 – –
Finance lease creditor 1,666 1,726 – –
Total 1,025,825 1,043,014 103,892 106,812

Loans	are	secured	by	fixed	mortgages	over	the	housing	properties	and	fixed	charges	over	bank	accounts.	Interest	
rates	are	fixed	within	a	range	of	4.68%	to	11.05%	or	vary	with	the	market	and	are	repayable	in	instalments	which	
are due as follows:

Group Company
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Loan and Bond Repayments
In one year or less 16,312 6,270 2,931 3,536
Between one and two years 4,004 14,062 959 681
Between	two	and	five	years 22,347 19,343 10,622 10,116
In	five	years	or	more 439,950 449,283 92,313 96,028

482,613 488,958 106,825 110,361
Loans repayable otherwise than by instalments:
In	five	years	or	more 141,500 141,000 – –

624,113 629,958 106,825 110,361

Bonds
In 2011/12 Radian Capital Plc (“Capital”) issued £100m of 6% 2042 bonds including £25m of reserve bonds, the 
proceeds of which were on–lent to Portal Housing Association Limited (“Portal”), a member of the Radian Group. 
During 2012/13 the Company issued £2m of the reserve bonds to investors, again on–lending the proceeds to 
Portal. In September 2013 the remaining £23m reserve bonds were sold to investors at a premium of £5.0m  
and the proceeds were again on–lent to Portal.

In May 2014, Portal repurchased £23m of 6% 2042 bonds at a premium of £4.9m. At the same time, Capital 
issued £200m of part paid 2049 bonds at an interest rate of 5.029% of which £100m were sold to investors. 
£1m was paid at issue, and a further instalment of £24m is due on the second anniversary of issue, and further 
instalments	of	£25m	are	receivable	on	the	third,	fourth	and	fifth	anniversaries.	The	investor	has	contracted	to	make	
these	payments.	On	that	day,	Capital	also	issued	£100m	of	4.622%	2044	bonds,	which	amortise	in	five	annual	
instalments on the 26th, 27th, 28th, 29th and 30th anniversaries. £30m were subscribed for by investors, whilst  
a further £70m were retained. Funds from all issues have been on–lent to Portal on like terms.

In July 2015, Capital sold £50m of retained bonds 2049 at a premium of £7.1m, £0.6m was received immediately, 
with £13.7m due in May 2016 and three further instalments of £14.3m receivable in May 2017, 2018 and 2019 
respectively. The investor has contracted to make these payments. 
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18. Payables: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year continued
The fair value of the bond liability as at 31 March 2016 was £166.2m (2015: £166.3m) including the receipts and 
payments on the £148.5m deferred element of the 2049 bonds.

19. Recycled Capital Grant Fund and Disposal Proceeds Fund

Recycled 
capital 

grant fund 
£’000

Disposals 
proceeds 

fund
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 April 2015 (11,062) – (11,062)

Net Inputs to Fund:
Grants recycled (4,027) (315) (4,342)
Interest accrued (39) – (39)
Transfer from other Group members (342) (96) (438)

Recycling of Net Grant:
New build 2,059 – 2,059
Transfer to other Group members 342 96 438
At 31 March 2016 (13,069) (315) (13,384)

Section 24 of the Housing Act 1996 requires Registered Providers to credit to a Disposal Proceeds Fund the net 
proceeds of Right to Acquire and Voluntary Purchase Grant Sales. The purpose of the Disposal Proceeds Fund 
is to provide replacement properties for rent at no greater cost than properties provided through the Approved 
Development Programme. If the net proceeds remain unspent after the third year, the funds become repayable  
to the HCA.

The Recycled Capital Grant Fund relates to SHG previously received on social housing properties that have been 
sold, demolished or for which there has been a change of use which does not meet the original conditions of the 
Grant. The HCA permits grants to be re-invested within a three year period into schemes within the Approved 
Development Programme. The HCA requires funds which have not been re-invested within three years to be 
repaid.

20. Pensions
The Group, through its subsidiaries, participates in a number of Pension Schemes:

• Radian Group Pension Scheme (“RGPS”)
• Flexible Retirement Plan (“FRP”)
• Growth Plan (“GP”)
• Hampshire Pension Fund (“HPF”)
• The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (“RCB”)
• NHS Pension Scheme (“NHS”)

Radian Group Pension Scheme
On 1 October 2012 all employers within the Radian Group established RGPS, a separate pension scheme 
administered by The Pensions Trust. At the same time employers in the Radian Group withdrew from the Social 
Housing Pension Scheme (“SHPS”) and discharged those liabilities which were not transferred to RGPS. RGPS 
has	the	following	benefit	structures	for	its	active	members:

•  1/60th Final Salary 
•  1/60th CARE (“Career Average Revalued Earnings”)

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016
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20. Pensions continued
Radian Group Pension Scheme continued
RGPS is closed to new members for all employers within the Radian Group though the Group has retained the 
ability to admit new members at its discretion.

Radian has adopted a strategy of reducing the Group’s pension cessation risk by consolidating its pension 
obligations in a single employer over a number of years. This resulted in a credit of £0.9m to the Company 
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the prior year.

Employers continued to make monthly contributions of 6.9% of members’ earnings until 31 March 2015. A lump 
sum payment of £1.4m was paid in the reporting period ending 31 March 2016 (2015: £2.0m). 

The	latest	finalised	actuarial	valuation	was	carried	out	as	at	30	September	2013.	The	scheme	actuary	has	
determined that, from 1 April 2015, the employer contributions are payable at 23.2% per annum of members’ 
earnings	less	employee	contributions,	as	defined	by	the	schedule	of	contributions.

Main	financial	assumptions	adopted	for	FRS	102	purposes:

2016
%

2015
%

Increases per annum
RPI 3.0 3.0
CPI 2.0 2.0
Salaries 3.0 4.0
Discount rate 3.5 3.1

Flexible Retirement Plan
Under FRS 102, the accounting charge for the year for FRP represented the employer contribution. The Group’s 
contributions to the Plan charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year totalled £834,462  
(2015: £798,140). There were outstanding contributions as at 31 March 2016 of £64,040 (2015: £68,328). From  
1 October 2013 the Group automatically enrolled all eligible employees not already members of a pension scheme 
into FRP, increasing the operating cost of the Plan. Employees were given the opportunity to opt out.

Growth Plan
The GP is a funded multi-employer pension plan that is not contracted out of the state scheme. As the scheme 
assets	are	co-mingled	for	investment	purposes	and	benefits	are	paid	out	of	the	Plan’s	total	assets,	it	is	not	
possible to identify the Group’s share of the underlying assets and liabilities on a reasonable and consistent  
basis, the accounting charge represents the employer contribution payable for the period.

As at the Statement of Financial Position date there were three active members of the GP. 

The	latest	actuarial	valuation	was	carried	out	by	an	independent	professionally	qualified	actuary	as	at	 
30 September 2011 using the projected unit method. Additional employer contributions are required over  
10	years	to	cover	the	past	service	deficit.	The	additional	contributions	required	from	the	Group	from	1	April	2014	
were £3,900.10 per annum. These additional contributions will increase from 1 April each year by 3% per annum 
compound,	with	the	first	increase	effective	from	1	April	2014.

The	Group	has	been	notified	by	The	Pensions	Trust	of	the	estimated	employer	debt	on	withdrawal	from	the	Plan	
based	on	the	financial	position	of	the	Plan	as	at	30	September	2015.	As	of	this	date	the	estimated	employer	debt	
was £63,318 (2015: £73,072).

Local Government Defined Benefit Schemes
The	Group	participates	in	HPF	and	RCB,	two	multi-employer	defined	benefit	pension	schemes	where	the	deficit	 
or	surplus	can	be	separately	identified.	

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016



Radian Group Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2016   73

20. Pensions continued
Hampshire County Council Pension Fund
The funded nature of HPF requires the Group and its employees to pay contributions into the Fund, calculated  
at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment assets. 

The	latest	actuarial	valuation	of	the	Fund	is	dated	31	March	2013	and	was	performed	by	an	independent	qualified	
actuary on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The agreed employer’s contribution rate 
is 15.6% of gross pay for 2015/16 (2014/15: 15.6%). To contribute to the Fund shortfall, the Group must pay a 
capital contribution amount for past service contributions over a recovery period of 25 years. These additional 
contributions for 2015/16 were £46,900 (2014/15: £39,120). There will be a 20% uplift in these contributions 
each year until 2018 and then they will increase at 3.9% per year thereafter in line with actuarial salary increase 
assumptions.

Main	financial	assumptions	adopted	for	FRS	102	purposes:

2016
%

2015
%

Increases per annum
RPI – 2.9
CPI 2.3 2.4
Salaries 3.3 4.2
Discount rate 3.0 2.8

Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund
Windsor & District Housing Association Limited (“Windsor”) and Radian Support Limited (“Support”) are both 
members	of	the	RCB	Fund.	As	they	share	a	similar	risk	profile	and	the	Group	is	the	principal	employer	of	both	
subsidiaries, the balances have been amalgamated.

The	RCB	Fund	is	a	multi-employer	defined	benefit	scheme.	The	latest	actuarial	valuation	of	the	Fund	is	dated	
31	March	2016	and	was	performed	by	an	independent	qualified	actuary	on	an	actuarial	basis.	Windsor’s	level	
of contributions for 2015/16 is 21.7% of pensionable pay (2014/15: 19.6%). It will increase to 23.7% in 2016/17. 
Support’s level of contributions for 2015/16 is 19.2% of pensionable pay (2014/15: 18.1%).

Main	financial	assumptions	adopted	for	FRS	102	purposes:

2016
%

2015
%

Increases per annum
RPI 3.2 3.2
CPI 2.3 2.4
Salaries 3.3 4.2
Pension (or 5% if less)  2.3 2.4
Discount rate 3.0 2.8

NHS Pension Scheme
A	number	of	staff	employed	by	Radian	Support	during	the	year	contributed	to	the	NHS	scheme.	Members	
contribute between 5% and 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending on their total earnings and Support’s 
contributions represent 14.3% of pensionable pay.

The	NHS	scheme’s	statutory	benefits	are	fully	guaranteed	by	the	Government.	Member	and	employer	
contributions	are	paid	to	the	Exchequer	to	pay	scheme	benefits.	The	Exchequer	pays	for	the	cost	of	increasing	
benefits	due	to	inflation.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016

The cost of the scheme is equal to the employer contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. 
The total employer contribution payable in 2015/16 was £52,196 (2014/15: £66,023). There were outstanding 
contributions at 31 March 2016 of £1,492 (2015: £4,709).

The Assets in the Group’s Schemes at 31 March 2016 were:

Radian Group
Pension

Scheme Value
£’000

Hampshire
 Council 
Pension
Scheme

 Value
£’000

Royal County
of Berkshire

Pension
Fund

 Value
£’000

Total
 value
£’000

Equities 34,688 4,667 2,007 41,362
Government Bonds 14,842 2,130 64 17,036
Corporate Bonds – 174 609 783
Property 2,215 680 519 3,414
Cash – 390 188 578
Alternative assets 1,114 249 1,043 2,406
Total Market Values of Assets 52,859 8,290 4,430 65,579

The Assets in the Group’s Schemes at 31 March 2015 were:

Radian Group
Pension

Scheme Value
£’000

Hampshire
 Council 
Pension
Scheme

 Value
£’000

Royal County
of Berkshire

Pension
Fund

 Value
£’000

Total
 value
£’000

Equities 31,184 4,774 2,461 38,419
Government Bonds 15,041 2,098 77 17,216
Corporate Bonds – 132 781 913
Property 2,080 661 682 3,423
Cash – 306 255 561
Alternative assets 2,280 289 1,269 3,838
Total Market Values of Assets 50,585 8,260 5,525 64,370

20. Pensions continued
NHS Pension Scheme continued
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20. Pensions continued
The Group’s Obligations in Respect of its Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes are set out below:

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council
Pension Fund

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund Total

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Fair value of scheme assets 52,859 50,585 8,290 8,260 4,430 5,525 65,579 64,370
Present value of scheme liabilities (63,361) (68,646) (14,210) (15,230) (11,121) (11,754) (88,692) (95,630)
Group	share	of	deficit	in	the	 
 scheme (10,502) (18,061) (5,920) (6,970) (6,691) (6,229) (23,113) (31,260)

Movements in the Fair Value  
 of Scheme Assets:
Opening fair value of scheme 
 assets 50,585 39,930 8,260 7,350 5,525 5,463 64,370 52,743
Interest income on scheme assets 1,600 1,814 230 290 150 210 1,980 2,314
Actuarial (losses)/gains (1,362) 6,172 (110) 750 (1,082) 280 (2,554) 7,202
Contributions from employers 2,752 2,732 120 130 208 20 3,080 2,882
Contributions from scheme  
 members 935 993 40 40 6 8 981 1,041
Benefits	paid (1,651) (1,056) (250) (300) (377) (456) (2,278) (1,812)
Closing Fair Value of 
 Scheme Assets 52,859 50,585 8,290 8,260 4,430 5,525 65,579 64,370

Movements in the Present  
 Value of Defined Benefit Obligations:
Opening	defined	benefit	 
 obligation 68,646 52,933 15,230 12,300 11,754 10,536 95,630 75,769
Service cost 2,671 1,809 170 160 33 40 2,874 2,009
Expenses 412 191 – – 3 – 415 191
Interest cost 2,164 2,370 420 490 324 412 2,908 3,272
Actuarial (gains)/losses (9,816) 11,406 (1,400) 2,540 (622) 1,214 (11,838) 15,160
Benefits	paid	 (1,651) (1,056) (250) (300) (377) (456) (2,278) (1,812)
Contributions by scheme  
 participants 935 993 40 40 6 8 981 1,041
Closing Defined Benefit  
 Obligation 63,361 68,646 14,210 15,230 11,121 11,754 88,692 95,630
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20. Pensions continued

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016

Statement of Comprehensive Income:

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council
Pension Fund

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund Total

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Analysis of Amounts Chargeable  
 to Operating Surplus: 
Current service costs 2,671 1,809 170 160 33 40 2,874 2,009

Amounts Charged/(Credited)  
 to Other Finance Costs:
Interest income on scheme assets (1,600) (1,814) (230) (290) (150) (210) (1,980) (2,314)
Interest cost on scheme liabilities 2,164 2,370 420 490 324 412 2,908 3,272
Net Finance Charge/(Credit) 564 556 190 200 174 202 928 958

Analysis of Amount Recognised in Other of Comprehensive Income:

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council
Pension Fund

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund Total

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Actual return less expected return  
 on pension scheme assets (1,362) 6,172 (110) 750 (244) 280 (1,716) 7,202
Changes	in	financial	assumptions	
 underlying the present value of 
 the scheme liabilities 8,802 (12,268) – – 622 (1,214) 9,424 (13,482)
Experience gains/(losses) arising 
 on the scheme liabilities 1,014 862 1,400 (2,540) – – 2,414 (1,678)
Other actuarial losses – – – – (838) – (838) –
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) in Pension  
 Scheme 8,454 (5,234) 1,290 (1,790) (460) (934) 9,284 (7,958)

A	deferred	tax	asset	has	not	been	recognised	in	respect	of	the	RGPS	and	RCB	deficits	in	the	taxable	Group	
entities	as	there	is	insufficient	evidence	that	the	asset	will	be	recovered.	The	amount	of	asset	that	has	not	been	
recognised	in	respect	of	the	RGPS	deficit	is	£1,890k	(2015:	£3,612k)	and	the	RCB	deficit	of	£1,204k	(2015:	
£1,246k).	The	asset	would	be	recovered	if	there	were	sufficient	and	suitable	surpluses	in	the	future.
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21. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges continued21. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

Deferred
 taxation 

£’000

At 1 April 2015 1,400
Credited to Statement of Comprehensive Income (767)
At 31 March 2016 633

Deferred tax is provided as follows:

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Deferred tax arising in relation to revalued assets 407 1,369
Tax losses available (609) –
Other	timing	differences 834 30
Provision for Deferred Tax 632 1,399

Deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	are	offset	only	where	the	Group	has	a	legally	enforceable	right	to	do	so	and	
where the assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity 
within the Group.

It	is	not	anticipated	that	there	will	be	any	significant	reversal	of	the	deferred	tax	liability	in	the	next	twelve	months.

22. Ultimate Parent Company and Controlling Party
Radian Group Limited is the ultimate parent company. Radian Group Limited is limited by guarantee and therefore 
has no shareholders. Below is a list of all entities which make up the Group.

Subsidiary
Country of Incorporation 
or Registration Activity Holding

The Swaythling Housing  
 Society Limited

Registered Society (England) Registered Provider 100%

Windsor & District Housing  
 Association Limited

Registered Society (England) Registered Provider 100%

Portal Housing Association  
 Limited

Charitable Registered Society  
 (England)

Registered Provider 100%

Drum Housing Association  
 Limited

Charitable Registered Society  
 (England)

Registered Provider 100%

Radian Support Limited Charitable Registered Society  
 (England)

Care and support services 100%

Radian Capital Plc Public limited company (England) Funding vehicle 100%
Oriel Housing Limited Registered Society (England) Registered Provider 100%
Swaythling Assured Homes Plc Public limited company (England) Rental of residential  

property (dormant) 
100%

Radian Care & Support Limited Dormant company limited by  
 guarantee (England)

Dormant Company 100%

Radian Housing Limited Dormant company limited by  
 guarantee (England)

Dormant Company 100%

Radian Living Limited Dormant company limited by  
 guarantee (England)

Dormant Company 100%

Wayfarer Limited Dormant limited company (England) Dormant Company 100%

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016
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22. Ultimate Parent Company and Controlling Party continued

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016

Joint Venture Status Activity Holding

Affinity	Reading	(Holdings)	 
 Limited

Limited company (England) Holding company 50%

Affinity	Reading	Limited Limited company (England) Operator of PFI contract  
 to refurbish, manage and  
 maintain housing inventory

50%

Affinity	Housing	Services Unincorporated
Unit 2, Woodside Business Park, 
 Whitley Wood Lane,
 Reading, RG2 8LW

Housing Services Provider 50%

23. Group Capital Commitments
The total amount contracted for at 31 March 2016 related to schemes for which Board approval has been received 
and	finance	arranged.

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Capital Expenditure Commitments Were as Follows:
Capital	new	build	expenditure	contracted	but	not	provided	in	the	financial	statements 50,401 45,477
Authorised but not contracted 27,620 62,314
Total Capital Commitments 78,021 107,791

The above represents major works, capital new build or other capital commitment contracted but not provided for 
in	the	financial	statements	or	authorised	by	the	Board	but	not	contracted.

Our	capital	commitments	across	our	Registered	Providers	that	are	developing,	will	be	financed	by	a	mixture	of	
cash held (£51.8m at 31 March 2016) and short term investments (£7.8m). Additional funds will continue to be 
generated from operations (approximately £3.0m each month) and we also have cash from bond issues of £62.7m 
which has been received since the reporting date. 

Operating Leases
The payments which the Group is committed to make in the next year under operating leases are as follows:

Buildings Other
2016

£’000
2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Leases Which Expire:
 Within one year 228 422 166 243
	 Within	two	to	five	years 172 302 – 5
	 More	than	five	years – 79 – –

400 803 166 248
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23. Group Capital Commitments continued
The receipts which the Group is committed to receive in the next year under operating leases are as follows:

Commercial Properties
Leases with  

Partnership Agencies Tenancy Leases
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Buildings – 
 Leases Which Expire:
 Within one year 46 126 995 964 98,580 95,656
	 Within	two	to	five	years 72 105 3,751 3,668 378,780 367,613
	 More	than	five	years 248 259 7,022 7,645 1,528,748 1,604,478

366 490 11,768 12,277 2,006,108 2,067,747

24. Financial Instruments
The	carrying	value	of	the	Group’s	financial	assets	and	liabilities	are	summarised	by	category	as	follows:

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Current asset listed investments (see notes 15 and 16) 2,274 2,310

2,274 2,310

Debt Instruments Measured at Amortised Cost
Long term joint venture investment 1,502 1,517

1,502 1,517

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
Loans payable 627,511 634,625
Obligations	under	finance	leases 1,733 1,726

629,244 636,351

The	Group’s	income,	expense,	gains	and	losses	in	respect	of	financial	instruments	are	summarised	as	follows:

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Interest Income and Expenditure
Interest	income	for	financial	assets	at	amortised	cost 1,778 628
Interest	payable	for	financial	liabilities	at	amortised	cost (25,631) (31,366)

(23,853) (30,738)

Fair Value of Gains or Losses
Fair value movement on current asset listed investments (46) 262

Impairment Losses
On unlisted equity instruments measured at amortised cost less impairment 75 75

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016
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25. Related Party Transactions continued

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016

25. Related Party Transactions
During the year two Board members were residents of properties owned by Portal Housing Association Limited 
and The Swaythling Housing Society Limited. Rent received from the board members during the year amounted 
to £14,264 (2015: £14,184) and a net £541 was overpaid at 31 March 2016 (2015: £420 overpaid). Outstanding 
balances	are	due	weekly	in	advance	as	per	the	Group’s	standard	tenancy	terms	and	overpayments	are	offset	
against future rentals. No guarantees have been given or received and there are no provisions for uncollectible 
receivables.

Total	consideration	paid	to	key	management	personnel,	who	are	those	persons	defined	as	having	authority	and	
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly was £1,961k  
in 2015/16 (2015: £1,572k).

During the year two members of the Executive team had outstanding loans (2015: one) amounting to £5,370 
(2015: £1,042). Loans are unsecured, repayable in monthly instalments and do not carry interest. There are no 
provisions for uncollectible receivables.

The Radian Group Pension Scheme, the RCB Pension Scheme, the HCC Pension Scheme and The Pensions 
Trust Growth Plan are considered to be related parties and full disclosure of these schemes is given in note 20.

Transactions with Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
Radian Group Limited is the ultimate parent and has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 102 
33.1A not to disclose transactions or balances with entities which form part of the Group. 

This is the case except for intragroup transactions with the following subsidiaries and transactions with the 
following joint venture: Radian Support Limited, Radian Capital plc, Windsor & District Housing Association 
Limited	(“Windsor”)	and	Affinity	(Reading)	Holdings	Limited.	These	entities	are	not	regulated	by	the	Regulation	
Committee of the HCA and the Accounting Direction for Social Housing requires Registered Providers to disclose 
transactions with non-regulated Group members. Dormant subsidiary Swaythling Assured Homes plc was also  
a non-regulated subsidiary but there were no transactions with regulated Group members during the year. 

Transactions	with	the	subsidiaries	are	eliminated	in	the	Group	financial	statements.	Transactions	with	the	joint	
venture	are	not	eliminated	in	the	Group	financial	statements.

These transactions, with non-regulated Group members are shown from the perspective of the relevant 
Registered Provider:

Radian Support Limited
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Income
Management charge 533 454
Facilities charge 22 100
Lettings 156 227

Statement of Financial Position
Amounts (due from)/payable to “Radian Group Limited” (within one year) 2,033 (317)

The Radian Support Limited (“Radian Support”) management charge includes an allocation of budgeted Central 
Services	staff	costs	based	on	those	full	time	equivalents	whose	work	directly	relates	to	Radian	Support.	The	
charge also includes directly attributable budgeted software and shared IT infrastructure costs. The management 
charge is recharged to Radian Support from Radian Group Limited and The Swaythling Housing Society Limited.

The facilities charge is charged to Radian Support by Windsor and is a proportional allocation of budgeted 
facilities	costs	based	on	usage	of	its	offices	for	the	benefit	of	Radian	Support.

Radian Support leases homes from Windsor on behalf of the people it supports. These tenancies are on normal 
commercial terms and are managed in line with others in the Group. 
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25. Related Party Transactions continued

Radian Capital Limited
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Expenditure
Interest on loans and amortisation of premiums and fees (7,543) (7,350)

Statement of Financial Position
Amounts payable to “Portal Housing Association Limited” (within one year) 818 495
Amounts due from “Portal Housing Association Limited” (greater than one year) (104,797) (104,835)
Amounts due from “Radian Group Limited” (greater than one year) (37) (37)

There is no interest payable on amounts payable to and due from Radian Group Limited. The amount owing to 
Radian Group Limited results from normal intercompany trading transactions. The amount due from Radian Group 
Limited relates to called up share capital not paid.

Affinity (Reading) Holdings Limited
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Income
Loan note interest payable to Windsor & District Housing Association Limited 306 334

Statement of Financial Position
Redeemable loan notes payable to Windsor & District Housing Association Limited 1,502 1,502

In addition to the loan notes balance (note 15) and loan note interest (note 4) payable to Windsor and included 
in	the	Group	financial	statements	as	a	debtor	and	income,	Windsor	has	a	50%	investment	in	Affinity	(Reading)	
Holdings	Limited	(“Affinity”)	which	in	turn	holds	100%	of	the	share	capital	of	Affinity	(Reading)	Limited.	This	joint	
venture	is	included	in	the	Group	financial	statements	by	proportionately	consolidating	the	Group’s	share	of	assets,	
liabilities,	profits	and	losses,	using	the	gross	equity	method	of	accounting	(FRS	9).	The	Group	share	of	balances	
and	profits	are	disclosed	on	the	face	of	the	Statement	of	Comprehensive	Income	and	Statement	of	Financial	
Position and in the related notes. Net interest receivable is disclosed in note 4. Loan note interest is payable  
to	Windsor	at	12.5%	according	to	the	terms	of	the	agreement	with	Affinity.

26. Contingent Liability
Where	an	employer	withdraws	from	a	multi-employer	defined	benefit	scheme	which	is	in	deficit,	the	employer	is	
required	by	law	to	pay	its	share	of	the	deficit,	calculated	on	a	statutory	basis.	Radian	Group	has	been	notified	by	
The	Pensions	Trust	of	the	estimated	employer	debt	on	withdrawal	from	the	Growth	Plan	based	on	the	financial	
position of the Plan as at 30 September 2014. As of this date the estimated employer debt including Series 3 
liabilities	for	the	Group	was	£63,318	(2015:	£73,072).	This	reflects	The	Pensions	Trust’s	understanding	of	how	 
the	change	in	the	definition	of	the	money	purchase	contained	in	the	Pensions	Act	2011	will	be	implemented.	 
The Board does not see this debt crystallising in the foreseeable future.

27. Events After the Reporting Period
An announcement was made on 19 April 2016 to withdraw from providing care and support services. This 
decision was not taken lightly but is considered to be in the interest of all concerned in view of increasingly 
challenging	conditions	in	the	social	care	market.	We	are	confident	that	the	arrangements	we	are	making	for	 
the	future	will	enable	the	people	we	support	to	continue	to	live	their	lives	‘their	way’	and	flourish.	

On	1	April	2016	the	Radian	Support	RCB	pension	deficit	was	apportioned	to	the	RCB	scheme	in	Windsor.	 
In	consideration	for	the	excess	of	the	anticipated	cessation	deficit	over	the	accounting	pension	deficit,	Radian	
Support made a payment of £0.3m to Windsor after the reporting date. This consideration of £0.3m has been 
provided	in	Radian	Support’s	financial	statements	at	31	March	2016	and	eliminated	in	the	Group’s	financial	
statements. 

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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27. Events After the Reporting Period continued

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2016

In May 2016 the Group contracted to sell £25m of its retained 5.029% part paid 2049 bonds at a premium to their 
nominal value. 25% of the proceeds were received on sale, with 25% being receivable in each of May 2017, 2018 
and 2019. The investor has contracted to make these payments.

In addition, in May 2016, the Group sold £12.5m of its previously repurchased 2042 bond at a premium to their 
nominal value. All proceeds were received on sale.

28. Transition to FRS 102
The Company and Group have adopted FRS 102 for the year ended 31 March 2016 and have restated the 
comparative prior year amounts.

Changes for FRS 102 Adoption
1. Grant Accounting
Grants	were	previously	netted	off	the	cost	of	the	related	asset.	Under	FRS	102	government	and	non-government	
grants must be accounted for using either the accruals model or the performance model. As the Group accounts 
for its properties at cost, it has adopted the accruals model for both government and non-government grants as 
required by the Housing SORP 2014. 

Under the accruals model, both government and non-government grants have been allocated to the related 
assets and amortised over the useful economic life of those assets. The unamortised amount is held within 
payables and split between less than and more than one year. The amount of amortised grant that has been 
recognised in opening reserves is £34.2m.

Depreciation of the housing properties has been recalculated to account for the grant no longer being set against 
the	fixed	asset.	The	amortised	grants	and	the	increased	depreciation	are	included	in	turnover	and	operating	costs	
respectively in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.	 Defined	Benefit	Pension	Scheme
The	net	pension	finance	cost	recognised	in	the	Income	and	Expenditure	Account	for	the	year	ended	31	March	
2015 under the previous UK GAAP was the net of the expected return on pension plan assets and the interest  
in pension liabilities. 

FRS 102 requires the recognition in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of a net interest cost, calculated by 
multiplying the net plan obligations by the market yield on high quality corporate bonds (the discount rate applied). 
The	change	has	had	no	effect	on	net	assets.	Instead,	the	change	in	the	surplus	for	the	year	has	been	mirrored	by	
a corresponding change in the actuarial losses presented in Other Comprehensive Income.

3. Treatment of Joint Venture 
The Group, through its 100% owned subsidiary Windsor & District Housing Association Limited, has a 50% 
investment	in	the	share	capital	and	redeemable	loan	notes	in	the	joint	venture	Affinity	(Reading)	Holdings	Limited.

Under FRS 102 the Group must account for all of its investments in jointly controlled entities using the equity 
method.	The	impact	of	FRS	102	is	only	presentational	in	the	financial	statements.	Under	UK	GAAP	the	
consolidated	balance	sheet	reflected	Radian’s	share	of	gross	assets	and	gross	liabilities.	Under	FRS	102	the	
Statement	of	Financial	Position	will	only	show	the	net	investment	in	Affinity	(Reading)	Holdings	Limited.	The	value	
of the investment will be the same.

Similarly	the	Group	Statement	of	Comprehensive	Income	will	no	longer	reflect	the	Group’s	share	of	turnover	and	
the Group’s share of the operating surplus/loss of the joint venture, instead only the Group’s share of the joint 
venture’s	post	tax	net	profit	or	loss	will	be	disclosed.
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28. Transition to FRS 102 continued
4. Financial Instruments 
Under	FRS	102	financial	instruments	and	loans,	which	constitute	financing	transactions	can	either	be	classified	
as	basic	or	complex.	The	Group’s	variable	rate	loans	and	bonds	and	fixed	rate	debt	instruments	are	all	basic	
in nature and will continue to be held at amortised cost. Some gilts held in Swaythling and Portal have been 
classified	as	complex	and	will	continue	to	be	held	at	fair	(market)	value.

As basic debt instruments, the Group’s loans and bonds will initially be measured at the present value of the future 
payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. At subsequent period end dates, 
these	debt	instruments	will	be	measured	at	amortised	cost	using	the	‘effective	interest	method’.	This	involves	
using a rate that gives a constant rate of return on the outstanding amount. 

For	variable	rate	debt	instruments,	the	effective	interest	rate	used	to	discount	the	cash	flows	is	equal	to	the	market	
interest	rate	at	inception	or	restatement,	because	the	rate	reflects	a	commercial	negotiation.	As	a	result,	the	
notional	amount	outstanding	(which	is	the	amount	currently	recorded	in	our	financial	statements)	will	equal	the	
carrying value using amortised cost, hence there should be no changes to the carrying value of any of our variable 
rate loans. 

The Group’s gilts on security deposit will also continue to be held at fair value under FRS 102, at both entity and 
Group level.

Restated Revenue Reserves – Statement of Financial Position
This	reconciliation	sets	out	the	effects	on	Group	revenue	reserves	of	adjustments	required	for	the	transition	to	FRS	
102.	There	were	no	adjustments	required	to	the	Company’s	financial	statements	on	transition	to	FRS	102.	In	order	
to reconcile opening 2014/15 old UK GAAP revenue reserves with closing 2014/15 FRS 102 revenue reserves, the 
adjustments to 2014/15 reserves include all prior period transition adjustments.

31 March
2015
£’000

1 April
2014
£’000

Original revenue reserves under old UK GAAP 114,540 110,224
Amortisation of Social Housing Grant 34,657 30,457
Amortisation of other public subsidy 1,498 1,401
Restated	depreciation	due	to	reclassification	of	grant (29,537) (24,009)
Write back of depreciation on investment properties 1,640 1,457
Reclassify designated and revaluation reserve to revenue reserve 7,417 7,156
Revaluation of investment properties 1,475 529
Deferred tax on revaluation (472) (440)
Deferred tax on rolled over gains (928) (928)
Other FRS 102 adjustments 55 –
Radian Group Limited (Company) tax adjustment* 79 79
Finance lease – Collins House* (283) (267)
Restated Revenue Reserves 130,141 125,659

*This is the correction of a prior period error and does not relate to the transition to FRS102. 
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Restated Surplus for the Year Ended 31 March 2015

31 March
2015
£’000

Original surplus on ordinary activities before tax 13,434
Amortisation of Social Housing Grant 4,200
Amortisation of other public subsidy 97
Restated	depreciation	due	to	reclassification	of	grant (5,528)
Write back of depreciation on investment properties 183
Reclassify designated and revaluation reserve to revenue reserve 261
Revaluation of investment properties 946
Other FRS 102 adjustments 56
Finance lease – Collins House* (16)
Defined	benefit	pension	scheme	adjustment (1,121)
Restated Surplus on Ordinary Activities Before Tax 12,512

*This is the correction of a prior period error and does not relate to the transition to FRS 102. 
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